
Date Published: 6 November 2017     

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 14 November 2017 at 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence Andrea Clarke

2  Declarations of Interest 

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Andrea Clarke

3  Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 1 - 6) Andrea Clarke

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  Winter Planning 

The committee to receive a presentation. 

Maria Metherall

5  Quarter 1 Adult Social Care Performance Report (Pages 7 - 14) Margaret Willcox 
OBE

6  Quarter 2 Public Health Performance Report (Pages 15 - 18) Sarah Scott

7  Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report 
(Pages 19 - 56)

Mary Hutton, Dr 
Andy Seymour

8  One Gloucestershire STP Lead Report (Pages 57 - 64) Mary Hutton

INFORMATION ITEMS

9  GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report (Pages 65 - 84) Mary Hutton, Dr 
Andy Seymour

10  Director of Public Health Report (Pages 85 - 94) Sarah Scott

11  Director of Adult Social Services Report (Pages 95 - 98) Margaret Willcox 
OBE



    

Membership – Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Joe Harris, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin (Chairman), Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, 
Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Eva Ward

Co-opted Members - Cllr Stephen Andrews (Cotswold District Council), Cllr Doina Cornell (Stroud 
District Council), Cllr Janet Day (Tewkesbury Borough Council), Cllr Steve Harvey (Cheltenham 
Borough Council), Cllr Helen Molyneux (Forest of Dean District Council) 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Please declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
personal interests that you may have relating to specific matters which may be discussed 
at this meeting, by signing the form that will be available in the Council Chamber.  
Completing this list is acceptable as a declaration, but does not, of course, prevent 
members from declaring an interest orally in relation to individual agenda items.  The list 
will be available for public inspection.

Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to make a declaration of interest 
are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Jane Burns Tel: 01452 328472 /fax: 01452 
425149 e-mail: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Andrea Clarke, Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324203/e-mail: andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see p88 of the 

Constitution).
2. Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 

permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 324203) to make the necessary 
arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not 
wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on 
duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point. Please remain there and await further 
instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

HEALTH AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 
12 September 2017 at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Iain Dobie
Cllr Collette Finnegan
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Joe Harris
Cllr Steve Harvey

Cllr Stephen Hirst
Cllr Carole Allaway Martin
Cllr Helen Molyneux
Cllr Robert Vines
Cllr Eva Ward

Substitutes: Ron Allen (In place of Cllr Janet Day)
Cllr Stephen Andrews (In place of Cllr Jim Parsons)

Officers in attendance: Sarah Jasper and Margaret Willcox OBE

Apologies: Cllr Doina Cornell, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Others in attendance
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG)
Mary Hutton – Accountable Officer
Becky Parish – Associate Director Patient and Public Engagement
Dr Andy Seymour –Clinical Chair
Caroline Smith - Senior Manager Engagement and Inclusion

Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT)
Deborah Lee – Chief Executive
Dr Sally Pearson – Director of Clinical Strategy 
Peter Lachecki - Chair

Gloucestershire County Council
Margaret Willcox –Director of Adult Social Services 
Sarah Scott – Director of Public Health
Cllr Roger Wilson – Cabinet Member Vulnerable Adults and Commissioning 
Cllr Tim Harman – Public Health and Communities
Sarah Jasper – Interim Head of Adult Safeguardiing

Healthwatch Gloucestershire 
Chris Graves – Chair
 
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust
Katie Norton – Chief Executive
Ingrid Barker – Chair 

2Gether NHS Foundation Trust
Shaun Clee – Chief Executive
Professor Jane Melton - Director of Engagement and Integration

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board
Paul Yeatman – Independent Chair

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Cllr Stephen Hirst declared a personal interest as a Chair of Tetbury Hospital. 
 
Cllr Stephen Andrews declared a personal interest as a Community First Responder with 
the South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust.

18. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 12 September 2017 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

19. ADULT SAFEGUARDING 
19.1 The committee was pleased to welcome the Independent Chair of the Gloucestershire 

Safeguarding Adults Board (GSAB), and the Interim Head of Adult Safeguarding to the 
meeting to discuss this important matter with members. The Independent Chair presented 
the GSAB Annual Report 2016/17 and the GSAB Strategic Plan. He highlighted that a 
significant challenge going forward related to the risks associated with social isolation, 
hoarding and self-neglect. 

19.2 The Interim Head of Adult Safeguarding gave a detailed presentation of a safeguarding 
adult review of a self-neglect case where decisions made by the individual, John, had led to 
a life threatening situation. It was emphasised that a significant challenge in this case, and 
many others, was that when an individual had the mental capacity to make their own 
decisions (even though others might think that they were the wrong decisions) their right to 
do so must be respected; and this right was enshrined in law. In this particular case the 
only point at which John lost that ability was when he became unconscious and family 
members present made the decision to call 999.   

19.3 John survived the situation and participated in the review of his case; he does not apportion 
blame to any agencies. The review did highlight learning opportunities including raising 
awareness of safeguarding issues with private housing landlords. The committee was 
pleased to note that after a long period of rehabilitation John was doing well, and welcomed 
the information that he was happy to work with the GSAB to help improve awareness of 
self-neglect issues. 

19.4 This review prompted a lot of debate and concern. Members welcomed the work that the 
GSAB was doing to try and reach vulnerable adults, and that it was working closely with the 
voluntary sector and the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) through the 
Safe and Well visits, to try and make contact with isolated individuals. It was acknowledged 
that some people did not wish to be in contact or contacted by social care; this was why it 
was important to utilise partner agencies, GFRS in particular, to help overcome this 
reluctance. 

19.5 It was questioned whether there was an urban/rural split as many properties in the rural 
areas of the county were isolated. The Independent Chair informed the committee that the 
GSAB was aware of this aspect and worked closely with the VCS to try and reach these 
people. 

19.6 This review raised the question of the right of entry to a property. It was explained that the 
GSAB has collated together the powers of all partner agencies for ease of reference when 
situations such as these arose. An information pack relating to hoarding behaviour was 
also available to partner agencies. It was commented that it might be helpful for elected 
members to see this pack. The Independent Chair agreed to take this request back to the 
fire safety sub group.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

ACTION: Sarah Jasper/Paul Yeatman

19.7 A question was asked relating to the additional £400k allocated to learning disabilities 
during the budget debate in February 2017. It was clarified that this funding was specifically 
for ‘hate crime’. A question on this matter had been submitted to the meeting of full council 
the following day, and the answer was available on the council’s website. 

19.8 In response to a question it was clarified that although the ambulance service had not been 
specifically referred to in this debate, they were a key partner and did refer cases to the 
GSAB. 

19.9 It was questioned whether the right to a private life should outweigh safety issues. It was 
explained that it was a qualified right about where risk outweighed human rights. It was 
also explained that with regard to the Mental Capacity Act there were concerns regarding 
how this worked in practice, as, nationally, there did not seem to be a consistent 
approach/interpretation of the legislation.

19.10 It was questioned whether there would be any merit in joining up the children and adults 
safeguarding boards. It was explained that this would not be of benefit to vulnerable adults 
as the children’s agenda would dominate available resources.

19.11 Members were concerned at the potential for an individual to have an undiagnosed 
condition which could impact on their mental capacity. This was acknowledged, and it was 
agreed that this was a challenge. The Clinical Chair of the Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (GCCG) informed the committee that GPs did receive calls from 
concerned relatives and were good at taking action. 

19.12 The Chairman asked that the committee’s best wishes for the future, and thanks be sent to 
John for agreeing that his story could be shared. The Chairman also reminded members 
that safeguarding was everyone’s responsibility and that they should be alert to these 
issues and when visiting their constituents if concerned should contact the Adult Social 
Care Helpdesk.

20. HEALTH AND WELLBEING FOR THE FUTURE: COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 
SERVICES IN THE FOREST OF DEAN 

20.1 The committee was aware that the work to identify health needs in the Forest of Dean area 
and develop proposals had started two years ago, and was therefore pleased that 
consultation on the way forward was now beginning. 

20.2 The committee received a detailed presentation from the Chef Executive of Gloucestershire 
Care Services NHS Trust on the proposal. Given that there were people resident in 
Gloucestershire but registered with a Welsh GP members agreed that it was reassuring to 
hear that GPs in the Monmouth and Chepstow area were aware of this proposal and 
information would be available in their surgeries. 

20.3 In response to a question it was explained that although it was clear in the consultation that 
there was a preferred option this did not mean that concerns/issues raised in the 
consultation period would not be listened to. The Trust wanted to have an open and honest 
conversation with people. Members were also informed that there was strong support for 
the consultation from both the Dilke and Lydney Hospitals Leagues of Friends.

20.4 It was commented that there should be a greater emphasis on wider transport factors, not 
just a reliance on private transport, within the consultation. This was acknowledged, and 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

the committee was informed that there was a good community transport service in the 
Forest of Dean area and it was hoped that the Trust and NHS Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (GCCG) would be working more closely with this service in the 
future.

20.5 Committee members were aware that the GCCG has already undertaken a lot of work with 
Forest of Dean communities, and felt that the level of consultation activity proposed should 
reach most people. The GCCG would also be utilising social media. 

20.6 The committee agreed that it could support this proposal going out to consultation; and 
would receive the outcome of this consultation at its meeting in January 2018.

21. GLOUCESTERSHIRE HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - INDEPENDENT 
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL GOVERNANCE 

21.1 In September 2016 the Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) 
announced an unexpected and significant deterioration in its financial position. As a 
consequence of this, the GHNHSFT Board (in partnership with its regulator NHS 
Improvement), commissioned an independent review into the circumstances that 
contributed both to the financial decline and the fact that it had gone unreported for such a 
significant period of time. The report by Deloitte was published on 7 July 2017. 

21.2 The Chair of GHNHSFT gave a detailed presentation of the activity undertaken by Deloitte 
during the investigation and brought the committee up to date with progress against the 
report’s recommendations, in particular the work to strengthen governance and finance 
reporting. There was a concern with regard to the potential impact on services, but it was 
explained that as GHNSFT was commissioned by the GCCG to provide specific services it 
must deliver them. 

21.3 In response to questions the Chief Executive agreed that the new appointments at Director 
and Non- Executive level did mean that there was in effect a new leadership team with the 
challenge of delivering rapid change. She was confident that this could be achieved. Both 
the Chief Executive and Chair felt that there was now more and better challenge at Board 
level, and invited committee members to observe future public Board meetings.

21.4 It was acknowledged that there has been a lot of anger and frustration across the county 
with regard to how the GHNHSFT had arrived at this position. The speed with which the 
Chief Executive had addressed this situation was welcomed as was the work to improve 
transparency across the governance process. In response to a question it was explained 
that if appropriate, staff had been referred to the relevant professional regulatory body.

21.5 The committee was pleased to note that the learning opportunities from this review have 
been shared with STP partners; and that NHS Improvement was also using this experience 
when working with other NHS Trusts. The committee would continue to closely monitor this 
situation.

22. REMODELLING PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING CONSULTATION 
22.1 The committee welcomed the opportunity to be both informed about the Public Health 

Nursing Services (PHNS) and to also participate in this consultation. The committee noted 
that the council was responsible for commissioning Health Visiting services for families 
expecting a baby until the child turned 5 years and also a School Nursing service for 
children aged 5 to 19 years. The PHNS were delivered by Gloucestershire Care Services 
NHS Trust (GCSNHST). 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

22.2 The committee was informed that in December 2016, the Cabinet had approved a 
remodelling of the PHNS to bring Health visiting and school nursing together into a single 
service for children and their families from pre-birth to age 19, which would provide specific 
support at key developmental stages in a child’s life. 

22.3 The committee received a detailed presentation outlining the proposals. Members 
welcomed this consultation and in the main agreed that the direction of travel was 
appropriate. Members recognised that this service presented a good opportunity to identify 
safeguarding concerns and asked that care was taken that this aspect was not diminished.

22.4 The committee was pleased to note that funding had been received to enable the 
development of a perinatal mental health service. The importance of appropriate mental 
health support throughout the life journey was raised and it was agreed that the Future in 
Mind Transformation Plan programme of work be included in the committee’s work plan.
ACTION: Andrea Clarke

22.5 Members shared some anecdotal evidence regarding the transition period from midwife to 
health visitor. The Director of Public Health asked members to encourage people to report 
these matters as they happened so that they could be addressed. 

22.6 The committee would be interested to see the outcome of this consultation.

23. DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES REPORT 
The committee noted the report.

24. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT 
The committee noted the report.

25. GLOUCESTERSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 
CHAIR/ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER REPORT 

25.1 The Accountable Officer informed the committee that the GCCG would be bringing an item 
on the Non Emergency Patient Transport Service to a future committee meeting. Work was 
currently in place with the other CCGs in this contract looking at eligibility criteria. 

25.2 In response to a question the committee agreed that this was a useful report and welcomed 
the level of information contained within it. 

25.3 The committee agreed that a briefing on the benefits of the NHS111 and Out of Hours 
Service being delivered by the same provider, and how these services were performing 
would be welcome.
ACTION: Becky Parish

25.4 Members were aware of significant housing developments within the county and 
questioned whether discussions were already in progress with regard to the provision of 
primary care services in these areas. The committee was reminded that within the STP 
there was an estates strategy, led by the county council, which would be addressing these 
matters. 

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 1.17 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Health & Care Overview & Scrutiny Scorecard
Quarter One 2017/18

The following scorecards are enclosed:

This report has been prepared by the Performance & Improvement Team using data up to 30/06/2017

Page No.
Key to Symbols 2
Adult Social Care Performance 3
Strategic Risk Register Summary 7

1

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5

javascript:app.OpenBookmark(1,2243,true,null,null,false,'','');


Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 8



Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support Bigger is Better Snapshot 85.8 % 93.3 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 99.0 % 98.0 % 90.0 %

Please note that the SALT figure of (92.8%) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the local
figure.

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 91.8 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.2 % 99.3 % 99.6 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 88.9 % 87.7 % 87.3 % 98.1 % 97.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.0 % 95.0 % 95.3 % 99.6 % 98.8 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.2 % 33.2 % 32.4 % 33.1 % 35.4 % 34.9 % 30.0 %
Please note that the SALT figure of (36.95%) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.7 % 19.9 % 18.7 % 17.9 % 20.5 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.5 % 18.0 % 18.4 % 18.3 % 18.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 27.1 % 25.9 % 26.6 % 30.5 % 30.1 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 63.6 % 64.7 % 65.4 % 68.3 % 67.4 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 17.3 % 18.5 % 19.2 % 13.4 % 15.2 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 14.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 89.0 % 96.0 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 79.3 % 79.4 % 79.3 % 70.6 % 79.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.0 % 8.3 % 8.7 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun/17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2014/15 2015/16 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 360 352 320 374 354
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 366 389 466 450 378

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.5 % 71.6 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.4 % 3.9 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 76.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.80 19.25 18.33 17.24 18.88 16.96 15.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (8.21) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
There have been a high number of young people
transitioning into adult services. Despite this there has
been a reduction in admissions over last quarter.

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.37 1.37 2.19 2.19
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 4.4 4.1 4.9 3.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.02 12.58 11.76 11.76 11.22

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 563.30 864.30 790.74 784.43 787.58 824.63 700.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (624.39) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
The Lead Commissioner will be investigating with the
Operational Lead to see what lies behind this increase and
if it is linked to hospital discharges.

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.42 1.58 1.58 1.58 3.15
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1 0 2 3 3
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 861.07 789.16 781.27 782.85 818.33

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per
100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.10 3.40 3.11 3.91 10.00

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 1.28 0.91 1.04 4.00

ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per 100,00
pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

9.85 10.00

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

2.85 4.00

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Target

2015/16
Comments (2015/16)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis 2016/17
Target
2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,487 3,440 3,452 3,452 3,268
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,415 1,404 1,373 1,351 1,331
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 517 559 521 480 502

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.7 % 99.8 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 81.6 % 79.1 % 74.2 % 68.3 % 60.8 % 80.0 %

During the last month we have transferred some staff to
work on supporting delayed transfers, to prioritise
assessments and to respond to urgent requests. We have
a recruitment process taking place to recruit additional
staff on a temporary basis to try to cover all requests.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 94.2 % 93.3 % 97.7 % 97.2 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.8 % 95.1 % 91.7 % 84.9 % 74.9 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 70.8 % 68.8 % 62.5 % 56.3 % 49.4 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.1 % 72.9 % 66.5 % 58.5 % 53.2 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 428 453 363 453 428
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 185 274 273 263 215

CDS SAR03 % of total concerns that progressed to a safeguarding
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 43.2 % 60.5 % 75.2 % 58.1 % 50.2 %

CDS SAR05 % of enquiries where the risk was removed Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.6 % 15.5 % 12.2 % 11.0 % 9.6 %
CDS SAR06 % of enquiries where the risk was reduced Bigger is Better Year to Date 6.7 % 3.2 % 3.8 % 4.6 % 4.2 %
CDS SAR07 % of enquiries where the risk remains Smaller is Better Year to Date 23.8 % 27.3 % 25.6 % 12.4 % 16.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.1 19.5 19.5 19.3 19.4
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 77.2 % 79.2 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 44.5 % 47.2 % 48.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 64.3 % 63.8 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.6 % 73.6 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 68.6 % 73.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.0 % 90.6 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

3

P
age 9

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support Bigger is Better Snapshot 85.8 % 93.3 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 99.0 % 98.0 % 90.0 %

Please note that the SALT figure of (92.8%) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the local
figure.

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 91.8 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.2 % 99.3 % 99.6 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 88.9 % 87.7 % 87.3 % 98.1 % 97.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.0 % 95.0 % 95.3 % 99.6 % 98.8 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.2 % 33.2 % 32.4 % 33.1 % 35.4 % 34.9 % 30.0 %
Please note that the SALT figure of (36.95%) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.7 % 19.9 % 18.7 % 17.9 % 20.5 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.5 % 18.0 % 18.4 % 18.3 % 18.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 27.1 % 25.9 % 26.6 % 30.5 % 30.1 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 63.6 % 64.7 % 65.4 % 68.3 % 67.4 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 17.3 % 18.5 % 19.2 % 13.4 % 15.2 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 14.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 89.0 % 96.0 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 79.3 % 79.4 % 79.3 % 70.6 % 79.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.0 % 8.3 % 8.7 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun/17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2014/15 2015/16 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 360 352 320 374 354
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 366 389 466 450 378

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.5 % 71.6 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.4 % 3.9 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 76.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.80 19.25 18.33 17.24 18.88 16.96 15.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (8.21) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
There have been a high number of young people
transitioning into adult services. Despite this there has
been a reduction in admissions over last quarter.

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.37 1.37 2.19 2.19
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 4.4 4.1 4.9 3.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.02 12.58 11.76 11.76 11.22

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 563.30 864.30 790.74 784.43 787.58 824.63 700.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (624.39) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
The Lead Commissioner will be investigating with the
Operational Lead to see what lies behind this increase and
if it is linked to hospital discharges.

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.42 1.58 1.58 1.58 3.15
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1 0 2 3 3
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 861.07 789.16 781.27 782.85 818.33

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per
100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.10 3.40 3.11 3.91 10.00

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 1.28 0.91 1.04 4.00

ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per 100,00
pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

9.85 10.00

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

2.85 4.00

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Target

2015/16
Comments (2015/16)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis 2016/17
Target
2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,487 3,440 3,452 3,452 3,268
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,415 1,404 1,373 1,351 1,331
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 517 559 521 480 502

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.7 % 99.8 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 81.6 % 79.1 % 74.2 % 68.3 % 60.8 % 80.0 %

During the last month we have transferred some staff to
work on supporting delayed transfers, to prioritise
assessments and to respond to urgent requests. We have
a recruitment process taking place to recruit additional
staff on a temporary basis to try to cover all requests.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 94.2 % 93.3 % 97.7 % 97.2 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.8 % 95.1 % 91.7 % 84.9 % 74.9 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 70.8 % 68.8 % 62.5 % 56.3 % 49.4 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.1 % 72.9 % 66.5 % 58.5 % 53.2 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 428 453 363 453 428
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 185 274 273 263 215

CDS SAR03 % of total concerns that progressed to a safeguarding
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 43.2 % 60.5 % 75.2 % 58.1 % 50.2 %

CDS SAR05 % of enquiries where the risk was removed Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.6 % 15.5 % 12.2 % 11.0 % 9.6 %
CDS SAR06 % of enquiries where the risk was reduced Bigger is Better Year to Date 6.7 % 3.2 % 3.8 % 4.6 % 4.2 %
CDS SAR07 % of enquiries where the risk remains Smaller is Better Year to Date 23.8 % 27.3 % 25.6 % 12.4 % 16.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.1 19.5 19.5 19.3 19.4
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 77.2 % 79.2 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 44.5 % 47.2 % 48.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 64.3 % 63.8 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.6 % 73.6 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 68.6 % 73.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.0 % 90.6 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

4

P
age 10

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col10')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support Bigger is Better Snapshot 85.8 % 93.3 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 99.0 % 98.0 % 90.0 %

Please note that the SALT figure of (92.8%) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the local
figure.

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 91.8 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.2 % 99.3 % 99.6 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 88.9 % 87.7 % 87.3 % 98.1 % 97.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.0 % 95.0 % 95.3 % 99.6 % 98.8 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.2 % 33.2 % 32.4 % 33.1 % 35.4 % 34.9 % 30.0 %
Please note that the SALT figure of (36.95%) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.7 % 19.9 % 18.7 % 17.9 % 20.5 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.5 % 18.0 % 18.4 % 18.3 % 18.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 27.1 % 25.9 % 26.6 % 30.5 % 30.1 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 63.6 % 64.7 % 65.4 % 68.3 % 67.4 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 17.3 % 18.5 % 19.2 % 13.4 % 15.2 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 14.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 89.0 % 96.0 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 79.3 % 79.4 % 79.3 % 70.6 % 79.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.0 % 8.3 % 8.7 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun/17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2014/15 2015/16 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 360 352 320 374 354
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 366 389 466 450 378

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.5 % 71.6 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.4 % 3.9 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 76.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.80 19.25 18.33 17.24 18.88 16.96 15.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (8.21) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
There have been a high number of young people
transitioning into adult services. Despite this there has
been a reduction in admissions over last quarter.

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.37 1.37 2.19 2.19
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 4.4 4.1 4.9 3.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.02 12.58 11.76 11.76 11.22

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 563.30 864.30 790.74 784.43 787.58 824.63 700.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (624.39) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
The Lead Commissioner will be investigating with the
Operational Lead to see what lies behind this increase and
if it is linked to hospital discharges.

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.42 1.58 1.58 1.58 3.15
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1 0 2 3 3
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 861.07 789.16 781.27 782.85 818.33

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per
100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.10 3.40 3.11 3.91 10.00

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 1.28 0.91 1.04 4.00

ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per 100,00
pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

9.85 10.00

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

2.85 4.00

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Target

2015/16
Comments (2015/16)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis 2016/17
Target
2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,487 3,440 3,452 3,452 3,268
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,415 1,404 1,373 1,351 1,331
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 517 559 521 480 502

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.7 % 99.8 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 81.6 % 79.1 % 74.2 % 68.3 % 60.8 % 80.0 %

During the last month we have transferred some staff to
work on supporting delayed transfers, to prioritise
assessments and to respond to urgent requests. We have
a recruitment process taking place to recruit additional
staff on a temporary basis to try to cover all requests.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 94.2 % 93.3 % 97.7 % 97.2 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.8 % 95.1 % 91.7 % 84.9 % 74.9 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 70.8 % 68.8 % 62.5 % 56.3 % 49.4 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.1 % 72.9 % 66.5 % 58.5 % 53.2 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 428 453 363 453 428
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 185 274 273 263 215

CDS SAR03 % of total concerns that progressed to a safeguarding
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 43.2 % 60.5 % 75.2 % 58.1 % 50.2 %

CDS SAR05 % of enquiries where the risk was removed Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.6 % 15.5 % 12.2 % 11.0 % 9.6 %
CDS SAR06 % of enquiries where the risk was reduced Bigger is Better Year to Date 6.7 % 3.2 % 3.8 % 4.6 % 4.2 %
CDS SAR07 % of enquiries where the risk remains Smaller is Better Year to Date 23.8 % 27.3 % 25.6 % 12.4 % 16.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.1 19.5 19.5 19.3 19.4
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 77.2 % 79.2 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 44.5 % 47.2 % 48.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 64.3 % 63.8 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.6 % 73.6 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 68.6 % 73.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.0 % 90.6 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

5

P
age 11

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col11')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support Bigger is Better Snapshot 85.8 % 93.3 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 99.0 % 98.0 % 90.0 %

Please note that the SALT figure of (92.8%) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the local
figure.

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 91.8 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.2 % 99.3 % 99.6 % 99.8 % 99.7 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 88.9 % 87.7 % 87.3 % 98.1 % 97.2 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 95.0 % 95.0 % 95.3 % 99.6 % 98.8 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 31.2 % 33.2 % 32.4 % 33.1 % 35.4 % 34.9 % 30.0 %
Please note that the SALT figure of (36.95%) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.7 % 19.9 % 18.7 % 17.9 % 20.5 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 18.5 % 18.0 % 18.4 % 18.3 % 18.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 27.1 % 25.9 % 26.6 % 30.5 % 30.1 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 63.6 % 64.7 % 65.4 % 68.3 % 67.4 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected support Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %
ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments for support direct
to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 17.3 % 18.5 % 19.2 % 13.4 % 15.2 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 14.0 % 15.0 % 15.0 % 16.0 % 15.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 89.0 % 96.0 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 79.3 % 79.4 % 79.3 % 70.6 % 79.4 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.0 % 8.3 % 8.7 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun/17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2014/15 2015/16 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 360 352 320 374 354
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 366 389 466 450 378

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 83.5 % 71.6 % 70.4 % 74.7 % 81.4 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.4 % 3.9 % 3.7 % 3.0 % 3.4 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 76.4 % 90.2 % 89.2 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 12.80 19.25 18.33 17.24 18.88 16.96 15.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (8.21) used for end of
year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
There have been a high number of young people
transitioning into adult services. Despite this there has
been a reduction in admissions over last quarter.

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.37 1.37 1.37 2.19 2.19
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.8 4.4 4.1 4.9 3.6
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.02 12.58 11.76 11.76 11.22

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 563.30 864.30 790.74 784.43 787.58 824.63 700.00

Please note that the SALT figure of (624.39) used for end
of year reporting March 2017 has been replaced with the
local figure.
The Lead Commissioner will be investigating with the
Operational Lead to see what lies behind this increase and
if it is linked to hospital discharges.

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.42 1.58 1.58 1.58 3.15
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1 0 2 3 3
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 861.07 789.16 781.27 782.85 818.33

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per
100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 14.10 3.40 3.11 3.91 10.00

OLD: ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.70 1.28 0.91 1.04 4.00

ASCOF 2C pt 1 Delayed transfers of care per 100,00
pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

9.85 10.00

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from
hospital due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year

This new calculation of 'Bed Days' takes the number of delayed days
in the month and multiplies by calendar days. This replaces the old
methodology.

2.85 4.00

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator Group 15/16 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Target

2015/16
Comments (2015/16)

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis 2016/17
Target
2016/17 Comments (2016/17)

Long Term Care

BOC2 Number of Community Care Services Plan is Best Snapshot 3,487 3,440 3,452 3,452 3,268
BOC3 Number of Residential Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,415 1,404 1,373 1,351 1,331
BOC4 Number of Nursing Care Services Smaller is Better Snapshot 517 559 521 480 502

ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.8 % 99.7 % 99.8 % 100.0 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months Bigger is Better Snapshot 81.6 % 79.1 % 74.2 % 68.3 % 60.8 % 80.0 %

During the last month we have transferred some staff to
work on supporting delayed transfers, to prioritise
assessments and to respond to urgent requests. We have
a recruitment process taking place to recruit additional
staff on a temporary basis to try to cover all requests.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.0 % 94.2 % 93.3 % 97.7 % 97.2 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 96.8 % 95.1 % 91.7 % 84.9 % 74.9 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 70.8 % 68.8 % 62.5 % 56.3 % 49.4 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.1 % 72.9 % 66.5 % 58.5 % 53.2 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Target Jun17 Comments Jun17

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 428 453 363 453 428
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 185 274 273 263 215

CDS SAR03 % of total concerns that progressed to a safeguarding
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 43.2 % 60.5 % 75.2 % 58.1 % 50.2 %

CDS SAR05 % of enquiries where the risk was removed Bigger is Better Year to Date 11.6 % 15.5 % 12.2 % 11.0 % 9.6 %
CDS SAR06 % of enquiries where the risk was reduced Bigger is Better Year to Date 6.7 % 3.2 % 3.8 % 4.6 % 4.2 %
CDS SAR07 % of enquiries where the risk remains Smaller is Better Year to Date 23.8 % 27.3 % 25.6 % 12.4 % 16.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun16 Qtr Sep16 Qtr Dec16 Qtr Mar17 Qtr Jun17 Comments Jun17

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.1 19.5 19.5 19.3 19.4
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 77.2 % 79.2 % 80.7 % 78.0 % 79.2 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 44.5 % 47.2 % 48.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 64.3 % 63.8 % 67.1 % 66.9 % 65.7 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.6 % 73.6 % 81.7 % 77.3 % 77.3 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 68.6 % 73.6 % 66.5 % 67.7 % 71.4 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.0 % 90.6 % 82.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 15/16

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Comments 2015/16

6

P
age 12

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')


Strategic Risk Summary  Adult Social Care

SR7.1
Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from abuse
neglect in situations that potentially could have been predicted
and prevented.

Willcox, Margaret High 20 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults
Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk Residual Risk

Sep16
Residual Risk
Dec16

Residual Risk
Mar17

Residual Risk
Jun17

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions for High or Changed Residual Risks

7

P
age 13

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col13')


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Public Health HOSC

Quarter Two 2017/18

Produced by the Performance and Improvement Team

Key to symbols
Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance
No information
Missing target
No value

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good
Smaller is

better
A smaller value for this measure is good

Reporting Basis

Year to
Date

Performance accumulated over the
year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12
month period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in
time

Reported In
JHWS Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy

HOSC Health & Care Overview & Scrutiny

CYPP Children & Young People’s Plan
ASMT Adult Social Care Management Team
CDS Core Data Set

1

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better 19 128 158

A target for this indicator will be set for 2018/19 using this years performance
as a baseline measure.  The service continues to build on last quarters
excellent achievement  - this demonstrates that those entering the service for
support to change a lifestyle behaviour are also seeing an increase in their
mental wellbeing.

HOSC
CDS

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better 100.0 % 75.0 % 82.0 %

A target for this indicator will be set for 2018/19 using this years performance
as a baseline measure.  The service continues to build on last quarters
excellent achievement of 75% - this demonstrates that those entering the
service for support to change a lifestyle behaviour are also seeing an
increase in their mental wellbeing.

HOSC
CDS

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better 31.7 % 73.0 %

This is a new indicator and we are setting a baseline in year 1.   The figure
in Q2 is significantly higher than Q1 due to the way the indicator was
calculated and that we were agreeing thresholds in Q1 so not all data were
included in the total.

This is a really solid performance with nearly 73% of those completing their
programme of support with the service achieving a significant improvement.

HOSC
CDS

% of customers who quit for
4 weeks

Bigger is
Better

45.0 % 49.0 %

We are reporting this indicator a quarter behind to align with national
reporting requirements.
Whilst the overall quit rate is in line with the national figure of 50% this
includes both those accessing support to quit via GP's/pharmacies and the
Healthy Lifestyles Service.  The quit rate for the lifestyles service on its own
is 78% (over 25% better than the national average).  This is an outstanding
achievement and although numbers accessing stop smoking support is
declining (in line with national trends) this figure shows that the quality of
support being received is excellent.

Of these quitters 91% were CO verified again a significant achievement
given that the target for this is 85% and nationally the figure is around 70%

HOSC

Total number of smokers
that have achieved a
successful 4 week quit

Bigger is
Better Year to Date 412 780 1,045 1,125 283

This figure includes both quitters that have accessed the Healthy Lifestyles
Service (HLS) and those quitting via support from pharmacies and GP's.  The
number of people accessing stop smoking services continues to fall in line
with national trends.   The numbers from the HLS is 147 which has exceeded
the indicative target for the quarter (100) and accounts for 52% of quitters. 
This is a solid start for the service in its second quarter of delivery (Contract
started in Q4 of 2016/17).

HOSC
CDS

Healthy Lifestyles - Quarterly Trend Analysis - No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Sep-16 Qtr Dec-16 Qtr Mar-17 Qtr Jun-17 Qtr Sep-17 Comments Sep-17 Reported In

Healthy Lifestyles - Quarterly Trend Analysis- No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun-16 Qtr Sep-16 Qtr Dec-16 Qtr Mar-17 Qtr Jun-17 Comments Jun-17 Reported In

2

P
age 16



% of pregnant women
achieving a 4 week quit

Bigger is
Better ? ?

This will be a new indicator for 17/18. This is an annual target and the
numerator will be the number of women smoking at time of delivery - for
17/18 this will be based on 15/16 data so there is a time variance. The
number of women smoking at time of delivery for 15/16 is 630 and the
service has an indicative target to achieve 150 quits - therefore the overall %
we are likely to support against the total number of smokers is going to be
around 24%.

CDS
HOSC

Percentage of uptake of
health checks

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter 57.1 % 61.7 % 56.4 % 54.7 % 59.7 % 66.0 %

Positively uptake has seen a slight increase this quarter
and continues to be higher than the latest available
quarterly uptake data for England and the South West.

HOSC
CDS

% of infants being
breastfed at 6-8 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better Rolling Year 53.6 %

Performing similar to national average and against a target of 58%. GCC
Public Health have commissioned a breastfeeding peer support service to
support mothers to initiate and continue to breastfeed for 6 weeks or more.

CYP Scrutiny
HOSC
CDS

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better 56.0 %

Continues to increase steadily from 38.4% in April. 50% of all late checks are
as a result of do not attends by parents, all do not attends are followed up
with the offer of further appointments.

CDS
HOSC

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 94.4 % 96.0 % 98.0 % 95.0 % HOSC

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 95.0 % 93.6 % 97.5 % 95.0 % HOSC

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

515.0 600.0

Annual data for 2016 (updated annually). The rate of new
STI diagnoses in the county is significantly below the
national average. There has been a slight fall on the
previous year's data for the county but overall the trend
data shows that the local rate has remained relatively
consistent over recent years.

HOSC
CDS

Healthy Lifestyles - Annual Trend Analysis -No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17 Comments Mar-17 Reported In

NHS Health Checks - Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Sep-16 Qtr Dec-16 Qtr Mar-17 Qtr Jun-17 Qtr Sep-17 Target Sep-

17 Comments Sep-17 Reported In

Children's Public Health - Quarterly Trend Analysis- No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun-16 Qtr Sep-16 Qtr Dec-16 Qtr Mar-17 Qtr Jun-17 Comments Jun-17 Reported In

Children's Public Health - Annual Trend Analysis - Against a Target - Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Dec-15 Dec-16 Dec-17 Target Dec-

17 Comments Dec-17 Reported In

Sexual Health - Annual Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17 Target Mar-

17 Comments Mar-17 Reported In

3

P
age 17



% of late HIV diagnosis Smaller is
Better

Annual 44.8 % 36.1 % 50.7 % 40.0 %

Data covers the three year period 2014-16 and is updated
by PHE annually. Gloucestershire has low numbers of new
HIV diagnosis, and so a small change in the number of
late diagnosis can substantially skew performance. The
increase during this period is within normal expected
variation. Changes in the sexual health services will see a
more targeted focus on those at risk of HIV, helping to
identify cases earlier.

HOSC

Under 18 conception rate per 1,000 women (aged 15-
17) - Gloucestershire

Smaller is
Better Annual 17.9 17.0 15.2 20.0

Data is released annually c. 14 months in arrears. The
latest available data is for 2015. Positively, the county has
seen an on-going fall in under-18 conceptions since 1998
and the local rate is significantly better than the national
average.

HOSC

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better Year to Date 828 796 45 745 543 500

HOSC
JHWS
CDS

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

94.0 % 93.0 % 92.8 % 93.0 % 93.0 % 85.0 % CDS
HOSC

Effective engagement rate
of Non-Opiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

86.0 % 75.0 % 82.0 % 76.0 % 78.0 % 55.0 % CDS
HOSC

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

8.7 % 9.1 % 9.4 % 10.2 % 9.2 % 3.7 % HOSC
CDS

Proportion of all Non-
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

33.9 38.5 38.2 42.2 41.8 19.5 HOSC
CDS

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better ? ? ? 43.6 % 47.0 % 24.0 %

HOSC
CDS

Sexual Health - Annual Trend Analysis - Against a Target - Reported One Year in Arrears
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Sep-15 Sep-16 Sep-17 Target Sep-

17 Comments Sep-17 Reported In

Sexual Health - Annual Trend Analysis - Against a Target - Reported Two Years in Arrears
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Sep-15 Sep-16 Sep-17 Target Sep-

17 Comments Sep-17 Reported In

Drugs & Alcohol - Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Sep-16 Qtr Dec-16 Qtr Mar-17 Qtr Jun-17 Qtr Sep-17 Target Sep-

17 Comments Sep-17 Reported In

Drugs & Alcohol - Quarterly Trend Analysis - Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun-16 Qtr Sep-16 Qtr Dec-16 Qtr Mar-17 Qtr Jun-17 Target Jun-

17 Comments Jun-17 Reported In

4

P
age 18



October 2017  1 

Gloucestershire Health and Care 
Scrutiny Committee 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



Report Title 

  

Gloucestershire CCG Performance report  

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Oct 2017 

Purpose of Report 

  

  

The performance framework report provides the Committee with an overview of Gloucestershire CCG 

performance against the ‘in year’ organisational objectives 2017/18.  This report is broken down into four 

sections of the GCCG performance framework:  

 

• Clinical Excellence  

• Patient Experience  

• Partnerships  

• Staff 

Is this for information 

or decision? 

  

This Report is for information. 

Authors 

  

Mary Hutton, Accountable Office, GCCG 

Naveen Bhardwaj, Head of Performance , GCCG 

  

Key Issues:   

A full summary of performance against all national and local standards as reported to GCCG Governing Body is included within the 

scorecard for the relevant section of the report. An overarching GCCG performance dashboard is included as a supporting appendix; 

providing an overview of all key national and local targets. 

  

Recommendations to the Committee:  

We recommend that this report be noted. 

Financial/Resource Implications:  

Financial implications considered in provider contracts.  

2 

P
age 20



Contents 

1.0 Scorecard    

 

2.0 Executive Summary  

 2.1 Leadership 

 2.2 Better Care 

 2.3 Sustainability 

 2.4 Better Health 

  

3.0 Better Care 

 3.1 Constitution updates  

 reported by exception. 

4.0 Leadership 

 4.1 Measurement  

 

 

This document is a highlight report which is presented to give the CCG Governing Body an overview of current 

CCG and provider performance across a range of national priorities and local standards.  

Whilst inevitably this report focuses on areas of concern it should be noted that Gloucestershire is currently 

achieving the majority of the local and national performance standards.  

3 

P
age 21



1.0 Scorecard: CCG Performance Overview 

Better Health 
Good 

Better Care 
Requires Improvement 

Leadership 
Good 

Sustainability 
Good 

CCG Improvement and 
Assessment Framework 

4 

P
age 22



2.1 Executive Summary – Leadership 

This domain assesses the quality of the CCG’s leadership, the quality of its plans, how the CCG 
works with its partners, and the governance arrangements that the CCG has in place to ensure it 
acts with probity, for example in managing conflicts of interest.  
 

2.1.1 Staff engagement : Robust culture and Leadership Sustainability (OD Plan) 
 

2.1.2 Probity and Corporate Governance:  Full governance compliance 

2.1.3 Effectiveness of working relationships in the local system: Effectiveness of working 
relationships in the local system  
 

2.1.4 

 
Quality of CCG leadership:  Review of the robust culture & leader sustainability and an 
oversight of quality assurance.  NHSE have rated the CCG as amber for this category in Q1 

5 

P
age 23



2.2 Executive Summary – Better Care 

This domain focuses on care redesign, performance of constitutional standards, 
and outcomes, including in important clinical areas. 
 

Overall  

Rating 

2.2.1 Planned Care 
 

2.2.2 Unscheduled Care 

2.2.23 Cancer   
 

2.2.4 Mental Health   
 

2.2.4 

 
Learning disability   

2.2.5 

 
Maternity   
 

6 

P
age 24



2.3 Executive Summary - Sustainability 

This domain looks at how the CCG is remaining in financial balance, and is 
securing good value for patients and the public from the money it spends  
 

Rating 

2.3.1 Year to date surplus variance to plan (%) 

2.3.2 Forecast surplus to plan (%variance) 

2.3.3 Forecast running costs in comparison to running cost allocation (%) 

2.3.4 

 

Forecast savings delivery in comparison to plan (%) 

2.3.5 

 

Year to date BPPC performance in comparison to 95% target (%) 

2.3.6 

 

Cash drawdown in line with planned profile (%) 

2.3.7 Forecast capital spend in comparison to plan (%) 

 
7 

P
age 25



2.4 Executive Summary – Better Health (1 of 2) 

This section looks at how the CCG is contributing towards 
improving the health and wellbeing of its population, and 
bending the demand curve. 

Current CCG Performance 

Period Nationa

l 

Glos 

CCG 

What 

is 

Good? 

2.4.1 Smoking:  Maternal smoking at delivery: The percentage of 

women who were smokers at the time of delivery, out of the number 

of maternities  

Q3 16/17 12% 5.4% Low is 

Good 

2.4.2 Child Obesity: Number of children in Year 6 (aged 10-11 years) 

classified as overweight or obese in the National Child 

Measurement Programme (NCMP) attending participating state 

maintained schools in England as a proportion of all children 

measured.  

12/13 to 

14/15 

33.5% 32% Low is 

Good 

 

2.4.3 Diabetes:  Three (HbA1c, cholesterol and blood pressure) for 

adults and one (HbA1c) for children: The percentage of diabetes 

patients that have achieved all 3 of the NICE-recommended 

treatment targets 

2015/16 36% 34.4% High is 

Good 

2.4.4 

 
Falls: Age-sex standardised rate of emergency hospital admissions 

for injuries due to falls in persons aged 65+ per 100,000 population  

Q3 16/17 1,985 1,744 Low is 

Good 

2.4.5 Personalisation and choice:  Indicators relating to utilisation of 

NHS e-referral service to enable choice at first routine elective 

referral. 

03/ 2017 50% 76.3% 
 

High is 

Good 

These indicators show the latest position and are updated quarterly 

8 

P
age 26



2.4 Executive Summary – Better Health (2 of 2) 

This section looks at how the CCG is contributing towards 
improving the health and wellbeing of its population, and 
bending the demand curve. 

Current CCG Performance 

Period National  Glos 

CCG 

What is 

Good? 

2.4.6 Personal health budgets Per 100k population Q4 

16/17 

27.4 31 High is 

Good 

2.4.7 Percentage of deaths which take place in hospital Q2 

16/17 

47.1% 41.4% Low is 

Good 

2.4.8 People with a long-term condition feeling supported to 

manage their condition(s). 

Q3 

16/17 

64.3% 67.8% High is 

Good 

2.4.9 Health inequalities: Inequality in avoidable emergency 

admissions  for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions 

Q3 

16/17 

910 901 Low is 

Good 

 

2.4.10 Health inequalities: Inequality in avoidable emergency 

admissions  for urgent care sensitive conditions 

Q3 

16/17 

1,860 1,815 Low is 

Good 

 

2.4.11 Appropriate prescribing:  Antibiotics and prescribing of broad 

spectrum antibiotics in primary care  

 

02/ 

2017 

9.7% 9.7% N/A 

2.4.12 Carers:  Quality of life of carers   03/ 

2016 

0.82 0.82 N/A 

9 

P
age 27



Cancer 

Dashboard 

(YEAR TO 

DATE) 

(CCG) 

2 Week 
Waits 

2 Week Waits 
Breast 

31 Day Waits 31 Day Waits 
Surgery  

83.7% 94.0% 

31 Day Waits 
Drugs  

31 Day Waits 
Radiotherapy 

62 Day GP 
Referral 

62 Day  
Screening 

62 Day  
Upgrade 

83.0% 95.3% 99.7% 99.6% 75.5% 89.7% 85.7% 

Unscheduled 

Care  

(CCG / 

SWASFT) 

4 Hour A&E  
SEPT 17 

4 Hour A&E   
YEAR TO DATE 

Category 1 Ambulance 
SEP 17 

Category 1 Ambulance 
YEAR TO DATE 

86.2% 83.5% 59.8% 66.5% 

Planned Care 

(CCG)  

RTT Incomplete 
<18 weeks 

AUG 17 

RTT Incomplete 
<18 weeks  

YEAR TO DATE 

Diagnostics >6 weeks 
AUG 17 

Diagnostics >6 weeks 
YEAR TO DATE 

4.5% 4.8% 

3.0 Better Care:  

No Data 

10 

P
age 28



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care: Pre Hospital 

Out of Hours Attendances 

111 Call Volume 111 Disposition 

Ambulance – Cat 1 

11 

P
age 29



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care: In Hospital 

A&E 4 hr Performance GHFT AVG LOS 

GCS AVG LOS Delayed Transfers of Care 

12 

P
age 30



 

 

 

ED Performance for October has improved 
from the previous month’s position of 86.2%, 
to 88.9% which is 1.1% below the STF 
monthly trajectory (90.0%).  Year to date 
performance is 84.3% which is 5.4% below 
the YTD STF trajectory.  It should be noted 
that the Trust managed to achieve above 
90% on 15 days during October 
 
The A&E Delivery Board have agreed to focus 
upon 5 keys areas  in order to drive a 10% 
improvement in 4 hour performance. 
The areas identified as having the greatest 
impact within include: 
• Emergency Department staffing and 

workforce. 
• Increase Ambulatory Emergency Care 

volumes (AEC) 
• Development and extension of the 

frailty model 
• Introduction of Primary Care streaming 

in the Emergency Department (GRH) 
• Embedding SAFER principles across the 

hospital wards  
 

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E  

Top Line Messages: 

13 

P
age 31



Key Actions: 

• Trauma has been moved to GRH and  all electives orthopaedic activity  will take 
place at CGH with enhancements to Medical provision – Dec 17 

• Development of a Surgical Assessment Unit at GRH to include direct admits from 
GP’s and direct referrals from ED General Practitioner admissions direct to Acute 
Care Unit -Live 

• Creation of a winter pressures ward for patients that are medically fit  
• Introduction of Virtual Ward Model for Gloucester and Cheltenham localities –

Jan 18 
• Additional Discharge to Assess Nursing Home beds - Live 
• Primary Care Streaming within ED - Live 
• Increase in Domiciliary Care capacity – Jan 18 
• Integrated Frailty model with enhanced Older persons assessment liaison (OPAL) 

service  - Live 
• Enhanced Community team to “pull” patients and affect shorter stays in hospital. 
• Introduction of Troponin T testing -Live 
• Increase in Trusted Assessor, Care Navigator and social worker capacity 
• Full implementation of Mental Health Acute Response Service 

 
 

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E Key Actions (1 of 2) 

14 

P
age 32



 

• Implementation of recommendations from Emergency Department rota review – Jan 
18 

• Extension of opening hours for Ambulatory Emergency Care -Live 
• Roll out of the Ambulance Response Programme within SWAST – December 17 
• Winter pressures initiatives within Primary Care including additional capacity and 

earlier home visiting 
• Weekly cross provider Multidisciplinary Team meetings to support patient flow - Live 
• Introduction of new Escalation Framework within Gloucestershire aligned to 

National OPEL guidance -Live 
• Extended Criteria led Discharge  
• Extended therapies/pharmacy opening hours  
• Roll out of revised approach to red/green and SAFER*  patient flow initiatives –

Initiated 
*The five elements of the SAFER patient flow bundle are:  
S – Senior review. All patients will have a senior review before midday by a clinician able to make management and discharge decisions. 
A – All patients will have an expected discharge date and clinical criteria for discharge. This is set assuming ideal recovery and assuming no unnecessary 
waiting.  
F – Flow of patients will commence at the earliest opportunity from assessment units to inpatient wards. Wards that routinely receive patients from 
assessment units will ensure the first patient arrives on the ward by 10 am. 
E – Early discharge. 33% of patients will be discharged from base inpatient wards before midday.  
R – Review. A systematic multi-disciplinary team review of patients with extended lengths of stay (>7 days – ‘stranded patients’) with a clear ‘home first’ 
mindset. 

 

 

 

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E Key Actions (2 of 2) 

15 

P
age 33



3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance  

Top Line Messages:  
 

• September 2017 Category 1 performance for SWAST is 
59.0%, with year to date at 65.3%.  Performance for 
Gloucestershire was 57.4% and year to date is 66.5%. 

 
Key Actions- 
 
• A SWAST staffing rota review is underway to match 

resources with the peaks in demand. 
• Increase in the number of Dual Crewed Ambulances 

to reduce delays in transporting patients.  
• Increase in the number of clinicians working within 

the Clinical hub.  The aim is to  increase the  “hear 
and treat” rate through the application of additional 
clinical expertise. 

• Work is underway between commissioners  and 
SWAST  to improve sharing of information and 
therefore improve the response to care homes. 

 
SWAST have been taking part in the Ambulance 
Response Programme (ARP ) pilot, over the last 18 
months.  It has now been agreed that the programme 
will roll out to all ambulance trust nationally this winter 
and SWAST are expected to start reporting against the 
new KPIs in December. 

16 

P
age 34



3.2 Unscheduled Care – Delayed Transfers of Care 

Top Line Messages:  
 

There has been a significant improvement in GHFT 
performance from the July position of 4.7% to 2.8% in 
August.  Partners are working together  to ensure the 
performance is delivered below the nationally agreed 
target for winter. 

 
Key Actions- 
 

• Emergency Care Improvement Plan (ECIP) and 
SAFER navigation meetings being held to discuss 
medically fit list and the introduction of weekly 
senior partnership meetings. 

• Senior partnership sign off of DTOC to enable 
understanding of actions for acute and community  

• Navigation meetings will feed into senior 
partnership meetings to escalation any recurrent 
issues identified which are disrupting the pathway. 

•  A Top ten list of operational standards across the 
pathway is being developed for all partners – the 
standards will encompass how long should each 
step of the pathway should take.  These standards 
have been developed and are currently under 
discussion. 

• A proposal is being developed to look at the 
establishment of a winter pressures ward at a 
nursing home, the paper will focus  on the quality 
and governance aspects of the ward development. 

17 

P
age 35



3.3 System Overview Planned Care: 

Referral Trends Diagnostics 

Due to the implementation of the patient administration system, TrakCare, in early 
December 2016, GHFT routine reporting of RTT performance, outpatient/inpatient waiting 
lists and accurate activity data is not available. 
 
A recovery plan is being developed with GHFT to recover routine reporting, as and when 
available this data will be reflected within this report. 

18 

P
age 36



3.4 Planned Care – Diagnostics >6 weeks 

 

 
GCCG Diagnostic performance for August remains static at 4.5% 
with 368 breaches.    GHT Performance showed an improvement, 
from 5.1% in July to 4.6% in August based on 301 greater than 6 
week waits. 
The specialities in which the CCG are not meeting the target are: 
• Audiology 54 breaches (13.3%) 
• Sleep Studies 1 breach (3.6%) 
• Urodynamics 2 breaches (15.4%) 
• Colonoscopy 226 breaches (41.5%) 
• Flexi Sigmoidoscopy 4 breaches (3.3%) 
• Cystoscopy 3 breaches (27.3%) 
• Gastroscopy 22 breaches (5.7%) 

 

Audiology: 
• Recovery plans have been received by the CCG and a formal 

response has been provided.  Recruitment of additional 
audiologists has been undertaken  and staff have started 
employment (6 FTE have joined the service as at the end of 
September).   

 
Endoscopy: 
• Waiting list clinics have been initiated, & these have undertaken 

urgent 2ww appointments and surveillance patients. GHFT have 
begun subcontracting to alternative providers to support 
recovery. 

    
There is modelling being undertaken to better understand the 
implications on diagnostic performance. 

 

Top Line Messages: 

19 

P
age 37



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD Aug 2017 

2WW (GP Ref’d) 2WW (Breast) 

31 day  31 day subsequent treatm’t: Surgery 

20 

P
age 38



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD Aug 2017 

31 day subsequent treatm’t: Drugs 31 day subsequent treatm’t: Radiotherapy 

21 

P
age 39



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD June 2017 

62 day: Consultant Upgrade 

62 day: GP referral 62 day: Screening 

22 

P
age 40



3.6 Cancer – 2 week waits 

 

 

Performance against the 2-week cancer wait 
target declined from 80.2% in July to 71.3% in 
June.   There were 498 breaches in the following 
specialities:-  
 
• Brain/CNS (7 breaches) 
• Breast (28 breaches) 
• Children's Cancers (4 breaches), 
• Gynae (48 breaches), 
• Head & Neck (27 breaches) 
• Lower GI (154 breaches), 
• Lung (6 breaches), 
• Sarcoma (1 breach), 
• Skin (154 breaches), 
• Testicular (2 breaches), 
• Upper GI (26 breaches)  
• Urology (41 breaches). 

 
An action plan is in place to drive performance 
recovery. 

Top Line Messages: 

23 

P
age 41



3.7 Cancer – 62 days  

 

 

Performance against the 62-day wait target  
improved from 72.1% in July to 79.7% in August, 
which is below the agreed recovery trajectory 
target at 85.2%, with 29 breaches of which; 
 
• 3 in Haematology 
• 6 in Lower GI 
• 6 in Lung 
• 1 in Other Cancers 
• 1 in Skin 
• 1 in Upper Gastro-Intestinal 
• 11 in Urology 

 
 

104 Day Breaches 
There were  10 over 104 day CCG breaches 
reported at the end of August, all of which were 
at GHFT. The number of patients in this category 
is tracked weekly by the Trust, weekly updates 
are shared with the CCG. 
 
An action plan is in place to drive performance 
recovery. 
 

Top Line Messages: 

24 

P
age 42



3.7 Cancer – Key Actions – 2 Week Cancer & 62 day  

25 

• Confirmation of National Cancer Recovery funds received w/c 2nd 
October.  Support previously confirmed for additional MRI capacity for urology. 
Further funding will now support CT capacity for a number of pathways and 
additional administrative capacity for colorectal. 

• An in-depth “Critical Friend” visit held with representatives from NHS 
Improvement and IST to undertake a thorough review of cancer services 
management processes. Findings assured the Trust had a good grip on patient 
management processes, whilst acknowledging the current significant 
performance challenges. 

• 2WW Booking: New 2WW leaflet and GP checklist agreed with patient group 
and LMC to optimise use of appointment slots. 

• Colorectal Streamlining Project now well progressed including a deep dive 
review of 2WW referral. Primary and secondary care stakeholder workshop held 
21st Sept with agreed actions, including option appraisal for triaged STT. 
Outsourcing continues to address backlogs. 

• Upper GI: additional endoscopic scope purchased to shorten pathway, plus 
routine endoscopy outsourcing. 

P
age 43



3.7 Cancer – Key Actions – 2 Week Cancer & 62 day  

26 

• Lung: refreshed focus on the Optimal Lung Cancer Pathway and STT CT. 
Attendance at SWAG Alliance regional lung project initiation 10th October.  

• Urology: One-stop diagnostic clinic now fully operational. Biopsy capacity 
increased and measures to maximise surgical capacity 
implemented.  Gloucestershire lead co-chairing regional Alliance project to 
standardise best practice diagnostics pathway.  Implementation of PSA tracker 
will release medium term capacity. 

• Breast: additional radiology capacity with locum support remains in place. 
• Gynaecology: further pathway improvements in place and additional consultant 

confirmed. 
• Dermatology: new one-stop clinical model prepared for launch in November. 

P
age 44



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health - IAPT 

Access Recovery 

Referral to Treatment - 6 wks Referral to Treatment - 18 wks 

27 

P
age 45



3.8 Mental Health - IAPT 

 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

IAPT Access performance in August was 0.91% 
against a national monthly target of 1.25%.  
Cumulative year to date performance is 4.83% 
against a target of 6.25%  IAPT Recovery was 
above target at 57% for August. 
 
2G have created an improvement plan for access 
and recovery, this includes an internal 
productivity review and the providing of an E-
provision via an external company to improve 
access rates. 
 
There are known discrepancies between 
nationally reported recovery figures and local 
reported figures from 2G.  2G have an on-going 
programme of work that will help ensure better 
understand the variances in reporting of data. 2G 
staff are being briefed and trained on the issues 
to ensure that true clinical performance of the 
service can be reflected within the national 
dataset and a new care pathway has been 
introduced. 
 
2G have agreed with NHSE that they can adjust 
our reporting so that they are able to record 
some first assessment appointments as first 
treatment.  This will have a positive impact on 
the IAPT KPIs.  2G have stated to report using the 
new methodology from September  

28 

P
age 46



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health – Children & 

Young People 

29 

April May June/Q1 July August
September/

Q2
October November

December

/Q3
January February March/Q4

Children and young people who 

enter a treatment programme to 

have a care coordinator - (Level 3 

Services) Target : 98%
99% 99% 99% 99% 99%

95% accepted referrals receiving 

initial appointment within 4 weeks 

(excludes YOS, substance misuse, 

inpatient and crisis/home treatment 

and complex engagement) (CYPS) - 

Target 95%

99%

Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 8 weeks , excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home 

treatment) (CYPS) - Target 80%
89%

Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 10 weeks (excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home 

treatment) (CYPS) - Target 95%
96%

Children and Young People's Mental Health (CYPS)

P
age 47



3.9 Continuing Health Care - CHC Assessments completed  

in 28 days 

 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

30 

NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) means a package 
of ongoing care that is arranged and funded solely 
by the NHS where the individual (>18 years) has 
been found to have a ‘primary health need. The 
time between the  Checklist (or other notification 
of potential eligibility) being received by the CCG 
and the funding decision being made should, 
generally, not exceed 28 days. The 28 day referral 
time starts from the date the CCG  receives the 
decision that full consideration for CHC is required 
and ends at the point the CCG makes the decision. 
The CHC service identified delays within internal 
and external processes leading to a backlog of 
assessments. 
Some of the ongoing reasons identified as causing 
delays are: 
• Accessing Social workers to constitute a 

Multidisciplinary team. 
• Engaging community nursing teams to complete 

nursing assessments. 
• Backlog s, in particular areas, learning disability.  

 

Key Actions: 
• The CCG invested into the CHC service  

restructured the team 
• Improved data collection and monitoring to 

ensure that delays are kept to a minimum and 
the reasons for delays are identified 

• Improved working arrangements with our Local 
Authority and our community partners to 
reduce any CHC process delays 

 
 
 

P
age 48



3.9 Continuing Health Care - CHC Assessments completed in a  

non acute setting 

 

 

 

Top Line Messages: 

31 

It is preferable for eligibility for NHS 
Continuing Healthcare to be considered 
after discharge from hospital when the 
person’s long term needs are clearer, 
and for NHS-funded services to be 
provided in the interim. This pathway 
was developed between CHC along with 
Adult Social Care to support both 
organisations with flow into Discharge 
to Assess beds and align the CHC 
National Framework around patients 
not being assessed whilst in an acute 
setting.  
 
The new Discharge to Assess pathway 
commenced on the  9th May 2016 and 
now only in exceptional circumstances 
does a CHC checklist and full assessment  
take place in an acute hospital setting 
within Gloucestershire. This pathway for 
CHC and Adult Social Care is working 
well, with those individuals identified as 
requiring a full assessment for NHS 
Continuing Healthcare now taking place 
in a more appropriate setting.  

P
age 49



District Nursing:-  

• District nursing is now on the GCS risk register. The main risk perceived by the CCG is with end of life care.  

• The Band 6 district nurse staff group has a high vacancy rate and nurses continue to leave the service in favour of 
more attractive roles in areas such as the virtual ward, pull model and frailty nursing. The nurses who are leaving tend 
to be more experience staff members and backfill is being provided by newly qualified band 5 nurses. Overall the skill 
and experience of this staff group is declining. 

• Increased demand is also being put on the service and this, combined with the shift in staff type, is putting the service 
at risk. It is also believed that the district nurse staff group is becoming disconnected from other services as models 
such as virtual ward are implemented.  

 

RTT:- 

• 5 of the 8 monitored services are failing the KPI. 

• MSKCAT performance has significantly fallen this month to 35.7% and is at its lowest position YTD and well short of 
the target. -  GCS have been focusing on addressing patients waiting more than 8 weeks. As a result performance has 
declined temporarily while they see these patients but then will recover and is expected to deliver a consistently 
improved performance against trajectory 

• Occupational Health performance has risen to 87.1% for September from the August position of 84.5% but is still short 
of the target. 

• Adult Physiotherapy performance has declined this month after recent improvements. Performance fell from 93% to 
86.6%. 

• Parkinson Nursing performance has significantly fell to 33.3% for September after consistently achieving 100% against 
target. 

• Podiatry performance has dipped slightly to 94.4% after 3 months of achieving the target. 

• The Speech and Language Therapy service has met the RTT target with performance of 96.7% after failing the target 
for 3 consecutive months. 

• Only Diabetes Nursing and bone health services are meeting the YTD target. 
 

Community Hospitals 

• Both weekend and weekday discharges were below target, 2.8 against a target of 4  for weekends  and 6.5 against a 
target of 11 for weekdays 
 

Length of stay 

• Community Hospitals LOS – is 27.2 days YTD and has been rated Red.  This has been attributed to community 
hospitals taking  more patients from the acute than previously and they are usually more complex patients.  
 

 

32 

3.10 Gloucestershire Care Services Performance Issues 

  

P
age 50



3.11 Performance – Patient Experience 

33 

Provider Nat Ave Provider Nat Ave

15.40% 26.00% 26.40% 26.20%

91% 96% 91% 96%

5% 1% 4% 2%

11.80% 13.00% 18.30% 12.80%

76% 88% 78% 86%

18% 7% 14% 8%

95% 96% 93% 96%

3% 2% 3% 1%

87% 88% 91% 89%

5% 4% 5% 4%

Jun-17 Jul-17

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

Response Rate

% Recommend

% Not 

GCS

2g

GHT 

Inpatients

GHT        

A&E

FFT Top Line Messages: 
In June 2017 GHNHSFT 
performed below national 
averages for the collection for 
both Inpatient and ED Friends 
and Family Tests, leading to a 
red and amber rating 
respectively for response 
rates. This position recovered 
to above the national average 
response rate with a green 
rating in July. In both June and 
July the % recommend results 
remain below the national 
average for both acute 
measures.  
Whilst neither GCSNHST nor 
2gether NHSFT report 
response rates, performance 
remains strong and roughly in 
line with the national picture, 
with an above average % 
recommend score for 
2GNHSFT in July. 

 

Patient Reported Outcome Measures PROMS  

NHS England undertook a consultation on the national PROMs programme in 2016. As a 
result of the findings of that consultation, NHS England has now taken the decision to 
discontinue the mandatory varicose vein and groin hernia procedure national PROM 
collections. NHS England will continue with hip and knee surgery PROM collections and 
are working with NHS Digital to make the national data on them easier to use and to 
provide a range of automated outputs that are tailored to the needs of trusts, CCGs and 
other users. 

P
age 51



4.0 Leadership  

Indicator Component 
Measure 

Narrative 

Staff and 
member 
practice 
engagement 

OD Plan 
Staff Survey 
Turnover 
Vacancies 
Sickness 
PDP/Training 
 

• The turnover rates over the last 12 months have been fluctuated slightly 
but remaining under 11%. This latest report shows turnover in August has 
increased slightly since July reporting at 10.79%. 

• Compliance rates for core training have increased since the beginning of 
the year to 69%  (week commencing 18/09). The Corporate Governance 
team has managed to resolve most of the issues relating to the validation 
of data from the Skills for Health system.  

• Staff in Post, Starters and Leavers: Since the last report staffing levels have 
remained the same as the previous month at 264. July & August has the 
highest reported staffing levels over the last 12 months. August has seen 3 
new starters and 4 leavers. 

• Leavers by reason: Reasons for leaving over the last 12 months remains 
predominantly voluntary resignations with a majority of staff remaining 
with the NHS. In August there have been 3 voluntary resignations and 1 
retirement.                                                                

• Sickness Absence Rate:   The data is indicating that long term absence 
remains  slightly up compared to the last report  from 1.14% to 1.49% 

• Practice engagement:  Through the work on the 5 year forward view with 
strong locality focus ensuring that all practice staff are updated regularly 
on new technology and guidance.  The CCG also has a regular programme 
of practice visits from clinical and executive members to ensure any areas 
of concern can be raised. 

34 

P
age 52



4.0 Leadership 

Indicator Component 
Measure 

Narrative 

Probity & 
Corporate 
Governance 

Conflict of Interest 
Compliance 
Constitution Update 

• The Standards of Business Conduct policy including updated 
NHSE guidance on conflicts of interests was approved by IGQC 
on 2 August 2017. The policy is published on the CCCG’s 
intranet and has been communicated to staff via Team Brief, 
covered in induction and presentations have been made to 
practice managers meetings. 

 

• A request was made to NHS England to formally change the 
CCG’s Constitution in April 2017, and as yet, no response has 
been received from NHSE. The Corporate Governance team is 
following this up with NHSE. 

35 

P
age 53



4.0 Leadership 

Indicator Component 
Measure 

Narrative 

Effectiveness 
of working 
relationships 
within the 
local system 

Action Plan • 360 degree Survey Reports were received in April (generally positive) 
 

• Reports forwarded to all Governing Body members and considered in detail by 
the Core Executive Team in May 

 

• Implications to be built into STP programme of work 
 

• The CCG remains an active contributors to HCOSC agenda planning, meetings 
and workshops 

 

• The CCG is developing constructive working relationship with new Healthwatch 
provider 

 

• The Practice Participation Network continues to develop, supported by the CCG. 
 

• The CCG remains committed to ensuring support for cross organisational 
working, including a particular focus on primary care changes and clinical 
programme approach and public engagement 

 

36 

P
age 54



4.0 Leadership 

Indicator Component 
Measure 

Narrative 

Quality of 
CCG 
leadership 

Robust 
Culture & 
Leader 
Sustainability 

• A new Organisational Development Strategy was approved by the Governing Body in 
May 

 

• The CCG is working with Consult OD (a part of the CSU) to develop the refreshed 
training programme for the CCG 

 

• Comprehensive development plan underway with member practices as part of 
primary care strategy 

 

• Appraisal and PDP process strengthened for staff 
 

• Quality improvement training available to staff (QSIR) 
 

• Regular development sessions with Governing Body 
 

• Annual commissioning event Sept with keynote speaker  
 

Quality of 
CCG 
leadership 
 

Oversight of 
Quality 
Assurance  

• Clinical Quality Review Groups in place for all providers including primary care and 
care homes, these report to the Integrated Governance Quality Committee 

 

• Quality remains a key priority ensuring that the focus on quality is maintained 
across the whole system, including primary care  

 

• New Sustainability & Transformation Partnership Clinical Reference Group has been 
established which will ensure a strong clinical voice in the STP redesign processes. 

 

37 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(HCOSC) 

14 November 2017 

One Gloucestershire STP Lead Report 

 

1. Executive Summary  

This is an inaugural report to update HCOSC members on the progress of key 

programme and projects across Gloucestershire’s Sustainability & 

Transformation Partnership (STP) to date.   

Gloucestershire’s STP commenced year one of four in April 2017, since then we 

have made progress in embedding and delivering key schemes outlined within 

the plan, in an increasingly challenging health and care environment. We 

continue to develop our delivery plans against our main priority programmes (see 

figure 1. Below), building on the success we have had to date and learning from a 

number of innovative pilots and past implemented schemes. This work has 

shaped the way we test and embed new models of care that will enable us to 

meet the growing challenges to our local system. 

Significant work has been undertaken to develop and embed business 

processes, governance and system enablers to support our delivery of the STP, 

ensuring that ambitions are transformed into delivery plans that demonstrate 

measurable outcomes. This has been supported by a comprehensive programme 

of STP communications and engagement.  

This report provides an update against the priority delivery programmes and 

supporting enabling programmes included within the Gloucestershire STP (noting 

that a One Place Business Case update will be provided to the HCOSC as a 

presentation separately.) 

 

  

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

Figure 1: Gloucestershire’s STP Plan on a page  

 

 

 

2. Clinical Programme Approach 

The Clinical Programme Approach has been adopted across our local health care 

system to ensure a collaborative approach to systematically redesign the way 

care is delivered in our system, by reorganising care pathways and delivery 

systems to deliver right care, in the right place, at the right time. The approach 

utilises improvement science, learning from established programmes already 

reaching implementation (i.e. Cancer, Eye Health) and embeds a pro-active 

approach to prevention and self-care. The following highlights from clinical 

programmes are detailed below: 

The Respiratory Clinical Programme Group (CPG) continues at pace with 

significant developments in work streams such as Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary 

Disease (COPD), Bronchiectasis and Sleep Apnoea.  Self-Management plans 

have been designed to help people with COPD have more confidence in how to 

best manage their conditions. These have been piloted within Gloucester 

throughout September in order to gather feedback on their usefulness and to 

understand where changes should be made. The CCG are currently reviewing 

Page 58



3 
 

uptake of these plans to take a view on potentially rolling the plan out to the wider 

county.  

The Dementia CPG has seen a slight improvement in Dementia Diagnosis Rates 

(DDR) from 68.2% to 68.4%. Furthermore, significant progress has been made 

across the Dementia Inpatient Partnership to work collaboratively on improving 

discharge for patients with dementia: 2gether NHS Foundation Trust has adopted 

Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust & Gloucestershire Care 

Services Board Round and Red to Green processes and there has been 

productive Adult Social Care engagement with Willow Ward at Charlton Lane.  

The Circulatory CPG has developed a new model for Stroke services which has 

been positively received by the Clinical Senate.  

Children’s & Maternity CPG have developed a Delivery Plan as part of the 

National Maternity Review ‘Better Births’ for submission to NHS England later this 

month.  Gloucestershire recently received a highly commended award for Anti 

Stigma for Perinatal Mental Health Awareness Raising 2017 by Maternal Mental 

Health Alliance. 

 

3. Enabling Active Communities  

The Enabling Active Communities programme looks to build a new sense of 

personal responsibility and improved independence for health, supporting 

community capacity and working with the voluntary and community sector. The 

development of the Gloucestershire Prevention and Shared Care Plan, led by 

Public Health, aims to reduce the health and wellbeing gap and recognises that 

more systematic prevention is critical in order to reduce the overall burden of 

disease in the population and maintain financial sustainability in our system. The 

following highlights are noted as part of the Enabling Active Communities 

programme: 

Sport England visited Gloucestershire in September for an assessment day to 

evaluate the local bid “Gloucestershire Moves.” The project is seeking a share of 

£130m to support a cross-sector and whole system approach to raising 

population levels of physical activity. The outcome of this is expected by mid-

November 2017.  

National Diabetes Prevention Programme (NDPP) continues and following roll 

out for Gloucester locality Cheltenham locality is now being mobilised. To date, 

there have been 368 referrals onto the NDPP with an overall uptake rate of 

18.5% currently in Gloucester City, with some practices achieving a 32% uptake 

rate. Roll out to the Forest of Dean is planned for November 2017, followed by 

Tewkesbury in December 2017.  

Page 59



4 
 

The Community Connector service, which commenced on 1st October 2017, has 

been renamed ‘Community Wellbeing Service’ and the community based staff will 

be known as ‘Community Wellbeing Agents’. Detailed reporting requirements for 

the service have been aligned to the emerging NHS England national dashboard, 

and built into provider contracts. A system-wide communications plan is currently 

being implemented following the change of name.  

An interim report from Bristol University West of England has been produced 

indicating a short term improvement in many of the health and illness attitudes 

targeted by the Facts4Life intervention in schools. The Enabling Active 

Communities Board was pleased with this outcome and has extended the 

contract for a further year.  

The Social Prescribing evaluation phase of the procurement process is currently 

underway. 

 

4. One Place, One Budget, One System 

 

New Models of Care & Place Based Model 

The One Place, One Budget, One System programme takes a place based 

approach to resources and ensures we deliver best value. Our community care 

redesign will ensure responsive community based care is delivered through a 

transformative system approach to health and social care. The intention is to 

enable people in Gloucestershire to be more self-supporting and less dependent 

on health and social care services, living in healthy communities, benefitting from 

strong networks of community support and being able to access high quality care 

when needed. New locality led ‘Models of Care’ pilots commenced in 2016/17 to 

‘test and learn’ from their implementation and outcomes, working across 

organisational boundaries, and leading to the formation of 16 locality clusters 

across the county. The following highlights from the programme are noted below: 

Stroud & Berkeley Vale locality is progressing a number of projects across each 

of the clusters, with particular focus on Multidisciplinary Teams, Community 

Dementia Nurses in practice and repeat prescribing.    

An interim evaluation of the Community Dementia Nurse pilot, at 6 months (April 

to October 2017), has shown the following outcomes for the pilot cohort of 

patients (n=275): 

 Reduced A&E attendance of 6.8% (5 people) and increased use of Minor 

Injury Units. 

 Increased emergency admissions to Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust (4.1% n= 2)  

 Reduced emergency admissions out of county  (80% n= 4) 

Page 60



5 
 

 0-2 day emergency admissions reduced by 25% (n=24)  

 Increase of 4 admissions lasting 3 or more days although excess bed days 

fell by 6% 

 Potential saving of £275k across the county based on reduced short stay 

admissions extrapolated to 5,743 patients on Quality & Outcomes 

Framework (QOF) dementia registers, although correlation to project 

cannot be proved. 

 Positive feedback from patients and GPs. 

A pilot to test a different approach to repeat prescription ordering has been 

implemented in Berkeley Vale and provides a new and convenient way for 

registered patients to order repeat prescriptions. The scheme has seen the 

introduction of a Repeat Prescription Centre telephone service based locally at 

May Lane Surgery in Dursley. As well as introducing a convenient, personalised 

and timely service for patients, the Repeat Prescription Centre telephone service 

will also ensure that the correct quantity of medication is identified and that 

medicine waste is reduced.  

Data from the Berkeley Vale Repeat Prescription Centre Hub to date (April-

September 2017) demonstrates the following level of activity and early impacts: 

 16,289 repeat requests received in the first 20 weeks of the pilot    

 1796 items requested but not issued 

 Prescribing data from ePACT for the period April to July 2017 shows that 

the number of items prescribed at Walnut Tree reduced by 22.6%, Acorn 

by 2.1% and Marybrook by 4.7%.  Of this total reduction, £52K can 

reasonably be estimated to be attributable to the repeat prescribing hub. 

 Significant savings in GP time as receptionist time freed up and 

receptionists now able to manage clinical correspondence once reviewed 

by GPs. 

The South Cotswold Frailty Service pathway continues to be adapted, aiming to 

take a case management approach to care for the moderately and severely frail 

patients in the locality, with a view to improving patient’s health and wellbeing, 

managing their conditions better and keeping them at home wherever possible. 

Key priority workstreams consist of upskilling of matrons, development of care 

plans, updating pathways with secondary care and completing remaining case 

reviews for analysis 

  

Urgent Care 

Our vision for Urgent Care will deliver the right care for patients, when they need 

it. In order to make this vision a reality and provide safe and sustainable services 

in to the future, we need to consider how to make best use our resources, 

facilities and beds in hospitals and in the community. We want to improve 

Page 61



6 
 

arrangements for patients to access timely and senior clinical decision making 

about their treatment and ensure specialist support is accessed as soon as 

possible. We propose potentially changing the way some care and support is 

organised in Gloucestershire to meet changing demands, make best use of our 

staff, their skills and the money we have. Updates from the programme include: 

 Winter Planning has commenced with a range of schemes which aim to 

streamline the patient journey and ensure that this winter elective 

cancellations are minimised and constitution target delivery is improved and 

maintained.  

 Additional winter schemes have been approved from: 

o New Better Care Fund allocation including a Surgical Assessment unit, 

enhanced frailty unit at the front door and the development of a virtual 

ward for Gloucester City and Cheltenham.  

 Gloucestershire’s STP has recently submitted a bid to NHS England as part 

of the Urgent and Emergency Care Transformational fund. The presented 

schemes included are noted below; outcome of the bids are still awaited: 

o The development of “hot advice” supported by “hot clinics” to support 

appropriate admission avoidance.  

o Support to deliver key fundamentals of the “Joining Up Your 

Information” strategy for Urgent and Emergency Care 

An update on the One Place Programme has been provided as a presentation to 

this meeting.  

 

5. Reducing Clinical Variation 

The Reducing Clinical Variation programme looks to elevate key issues of clinical 

variation to system level and have a new joined up conversation with the public 

around some of the harder priority decisions we will need to make. This includes 

building on the variation approach with primary care, promoting ‘Choosing Wisely’ 

and a Medicines Optimisation approach and undertaking a diagnostics review. 

In 2017/16 our aim was to develop a new and innovative medicines optimisation 

approach for patients living with pain in Gloucestershire. The Living Well with 

Pain Programme has now successfully distributed the Joint Countywide Pain 

Formulary across Primary Care to include GP’s, Locums and Pharmacists with 

the aim of harmonising prescribing practices across the healthcare community. 

Effective distribution to all clinical staff within secondary care is underway and the 

formulary is available via G-Care and the Joint Formulary website. The 

programme’s Complex Pain Outreach Pilot continues to provide bespoke support 

to complex patients with a joined up approach from primary and secondary care 

clinicians involved in the patients ongoing care and provides the development of 

a joint personalised plan.  

Page 62



7 
 

Furthermore, the programme has recognised the challenge for primary care 

colleagues when managing pain in general practice. A suite of masterclasses 

were therefore produced to look at the role of medicines vs evidence, -

recognising complexity and challenging consultations. Three out of four 

masterclasses have been successfully facilitated with excellent attendance from 

primary care colleague’s to date (double the minimum requirement of attendance 

as stated within the Primary Care Offer.) A bespoke Pharmacist Masterclass is 

now being developed to take place in November to launch the Risk Mitigation 

Plan which has been developed to actively identify patients on complex 

combinations of medicines and look to reduce the associated harms within our 

local population. 

 

6. Enabling Programmes  

The Workforce & Organisational Development (OD) Programme has three main 

work streams (Culture, Capacity and Capability) as well as a Social Partnership 

Forum to allow engagement with staff-side representatives from the STP partner 

bodies. The Programme have successfully secured £652k Health Education 

England funding for workforce transformation against the bids which were 

submitted earlier in the summer.  A new Project Manager has been appointed to 

focus on the programme two days per week funded by Health Education 

England.  

The Primary Care Strategy workstream continues to progress delivery of the GP 

Forward View plan and Primary Care Strategy. From October, Tewkesbury, 

Newent & Staunton and the Forest of Dean have been delivering additional 

evening and weekend access to primary care in their respective clusters. 

Following closely are two further pilots, the Aspen & Saintbridge cluster and the 

St Pauls cluster in Cheltenham, by end of October/early November.  This has 

involved considerable work on Information Governance, IT, logistics, financial 

and operational planning.  Feedback from GPs and patients so far has been very 

positive.  A positive article in the Forest of Dean local newspaper created interest 

from BBC Radio Gloucestershire, who ran a piece on this scheme on 24 October 

2017. 

Our significant quality improvement programme, under the “Time for Care” 

programme, has continued this month, with a second cohort of a local General 

Practice Improvement Leaders Programme, running for two days in early 

October, which aligns with Quality Service Improvement and Redesign 

programme (QSIR) and focused on primary care improvement 

methodology.  Furthermore, 35 practices have commenced their Productive 

General Practice Programme, running through until December 2017.   

Page 63



8 
 

The programme development group continue to develop a system-wide approach 

to performance reporting to provide assurance of progress against delivery of 

commitments set out in our plan to local, regional and national bodies.  

 

7. Recommendations 

This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are invited to note 

the contents.  

 

Mary Hutton  

STP Lead, Gloucestershire STP Footprint  

 

Page 64



 1 

 
 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and  
Scrutiny Committee (HCOSC) 

14 November 2017  
 

NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(GCCG)  

Clinical Chair and Accountable Officer’s Report  
 
1. Introduction 
 

This report has been reformatted to reflect better the new Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP) reporting arrangements to HCOSC. 
 
Section A now provides a general NHS Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (GCCG) commissioner update, incorporating a National 
consultation section.  
 
Section B now provides a CCG commissioner update focussing on primary 
medical care. 
 
Section C now provides Trusts’ updates from: 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT); Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT). 

 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership and Plan (STP) 
A new report entitled: Sustainability and Transformation Partnership Lead 
Report is provided as a separate agenda item. 
 

 

2. Section A: Local NHS Commissioner Update, 
 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 (GCCG)   

These are items are for information and noting. 

2.1 Gloucestershire Urgent and Emergency Care Resilience Plan 2017/18 
 
The Urgent Care Team and Performance Team have been working with system 
partners to develop the 2017 / 18 winter plan. The purpose of the plan is to 
coordinate and describe the additional activities the Gloucestershire Health and 
Social Care System will undertake to ensure we work together to deliver a 
resilient service to patients over the winter period. 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



 2 

A presentation will be made to HCOSC in November 2017 to provide Members 
with a comprehensive picture of winter planning arrangements across 
Gloucestershire’s health and care system for 2017/18. 
 

2.2 Health and wellbeing for the future: Community Hospitals in the
 Forest of Dean  

 
A 12 week public consultation commences on 12 September 2017 on a 
preferred option to build a new community hospital in the Forest of Dean by 
2021/2022.  
 
We believe this option would ensure high quality care in the future, meet the 
needs of local residents and improve working conditions for staff.  
 
If agreed, the new hospital would replace Dilke Memorial Hospital and Lydney 
and District Hospital. The consultation follows extensive engagement with 
community representatives in the Forest of Dean throughout the lifetime of the 
Forest Health and Care Review.  
 
Information to support the consultation describes the following challenges:  
 

 the two existing community hospitals are reaching the stage where it is 
becoming increasingly difficult to provide modern, efficient, effective, 
high-quality care  

 the ability to maintain some essential services across two community 
hospital sites is becoming increasingly difficult with healthcare 
professionals working across different sites and the challenge of 
recruiting and retaining enough staff with the right skills  

 there are significant issues relating to cost of maintenance of the existing 
hospitals and restricted space for services  

 the current physical environment within the hospitals makes it 
increasingly difficult to ensure privacy and dignity for all patients and 
manage infection control 

 too many people from the Forest of Dean are having to travel outside the 
local area to receive care that should be provided more locally  

 health care needs within the Forest of Dean are not always being met 
effectively.  

 
The following benefits associated with the preferred option are also described:  
 

 a new community hospital facility for local people, fit for modern 
healthcare  

 significantly improved facilities and space for patients and staff  

 more consistent, reliable and sustainable community hospital services, 
e.g. staffing levels, opening hours  

 a wide range of community hospital services, including beds, 
accommodation to support outpatient services, diagnostic services and 
urgent care services  

 services and teams working more closely together  

 better working conditions for staff and greater opportunities for training 
and development to recruit and retain the best health and care 
professionals.  

 

Page 66



 3 

Should the preferred option be agreed following public consultation, we would 
want to work with local people to design the facility and ensure it was both a 
worthy successor to the current hospitals and in keeping with the unique 
environment of the Forest of Dean.  
 
We are also taking the opportunity through this consultation to ask for views on:  
 

 A set of criteria which would be used to help decide where any new 
hospital would be located and;  

 How a recommendation should be made on any preferred location.  
 
There are a number of ways in which local people and health and care 
professionals can have their say and take part in the consultation:  

 Complete the FREEPOST survey in the consultation booklet and return 
it by 10 December 2017 using the freepost address. The booklets are 
available in local pharmacies, local GP surgeries, community hospitals, 
libraries, leisure and sports centres, District Council buildings and on 
request. 

 Read the booklet and complete the survey on-line at: 
www.fodhealth.nhs.uk 

 An Easy Read version of the booklet and the survey are also available 
on request and at: www.fodhealth.nhs.uk 

 Attend one of the public drop in sessions or visit the Information Bus 
(dates, locations and times can be found in the consultation booklet and 
on the website)  

 
2.3 Non-Emergency Patient Transport Eligibility Review 

 
GCCG is one of more than 10 CCGs across the South West undertaking an 
eligibility review to ensure equal entitlement to NHS-funded non-emergency 
patient transport services (NEPTS).  National eligibility guidelines were set in 
2007; however, local areas were allowed to interpret the criteria differently.  
 
The shared aim of the CCGs is to make sure that NHS-funded non-emergency 
patient transport is provided in a fair way for all those who need help getting to 
hospital appointments.  We want all patients to be considered equally against a 
common assessment process and this depends upon all patients being 
considered against a common eligibility assessment, which in turn may 
necessitate the removal of some existing ‘automatic entitlements’. 
 
To help reach this aim, a short patient/public questionnaire asking for people’s 
views to help inform the process has been created.  The feedback will be 
shared with each CCG for consideration in November 2017 to assist them in 
determining whether any changes to current eligibility arrangements are 
indicated; seek further engagement with appropriate patient representative 
groups and then implement any agreed changes for eligible patients living in 
the areas covered by the CCGs in question. 
 

Page 67

http://www.fodhealth.nhs.uk/
http://www.fodhealth.nhs.uk/


 4 

2.4 Planned Care Update 
 

2.4.1 GCare 
GCCG commissioning managers have worked with specialty colleagues in 
primary and secondary care to generate new documented care pathways which 
have been published on GCare.   
 
GCare is a local website which has been designed for use by clinicians working 
in primary care, specifically to support Gloucestershire based GP’s in their 
work. The website pulls together useful information from a range of sources 
and includes local care pathways, clinical guidance, referral forms, patient and 
care information, service information, as well as links to community resources 
such as social prescribing and voluntary sector groups. The information on 
GCare is guidance and clinicians still need to use their own clinical judgement 
about the appropriate care for their patients. 
 
Since May 2017 the total number of G-care page views by GP practice staff 
has risen by 16% from around 15,500 to 18,000 hits per month.  New pathways 
published include:  Breastfeeding, Colic in Children, Cow’s Milk Allergy in 
children, Fertility, Bronchiectasis, Faltering growth in Children, Pre-term infant 
and Personality disorder. 
 

2.4.2 One Stop Multi-disciplinary Assessment and Diagnosis (MAD) 
Following the success of the Urology one-stop Multidisciplinary Assessment 
and Diagnosis (MAD) clinic expansion from April 2017, the planned care team 
have worked with GHNHSFT to replicate this one-stop model in Dermatology 
who will be going live with their new “super clinics” in November.  This new 
model enables patients to be seen by a Dermatologist, receive a diagnosis and 
have minor surgery (if required) all on the same day.  In addition it significantly 
increases the efficiency of the clinic, seeing more patients within the same 
resources. 
 

2.4.3 Community Urology Service 
The Community Urology Service contract with GP Care has been extended for 
an extra year until 30 September 2018 to continue to support recovery plans for 
RTT and Cancer. 
 

2.4.4 Criteria Based Access and Prior Approval 
The Criteria Based Access and Prior Approval monthly challenge process has 
been extended to include out of county providers.  The challenge process has 
been well established with providers in Gloucestershire for a number of years 
so from April 2017 the challenge process has been extended to the main 
provider Trusts who are outside of Gloucestershire. 
 

2.5 The Better Care Fund 2017/19 
 
The Better Care Fund (BCF) plan for 2017/19 was submitted on 11 September 
2017.  The plan sets out our vision, plans and progress made to reach full 
integration. The objectives of the BCF align to our STP and are: 
 

 To reduce the number of people over 65 years of age in residential care 

 To reduce emergency admissions 

 To ensure people remain at home 91 days after hospital discharge 

 To reduce delayed transfers of care 

Page 68



 5 

 To improve patient experience 

 To improve quality outcomes for carers 
 
2.6 Children and Maternity Update 

 
The Gloucestershire Future in Mind programme continues to move forward, the 
Priorities Committee has approved a procurement process to secure online 
counselling services for young people following a successful evaluation of a 
pilot project. 
 
The CCG is taking forward the recommendations of the National Maternity 
review ‘Better Births’ in Gloucestershire. The local maternity system has been 
set up and a draft version has been developed and is currently being consulted 
on with women, families and other stakeholders. Sub groups have been set up 
with clinical and managerial leads and are on track to produce a project plan to 
be assured by NHS England by the end of October 2017. 
 
Gloucestershire have been awarded funding by NHS England for project 
management, clinical leadership and administrative support over the next 18 
months to begin to implement the plan. 
 
Gloucestershire have received a highly commended award for Anti Stigma for 
Perinatal Mental Health Awareness Raising 2017 by the Maternal Mental 
Health Alliance. The award was presented by Susie Orbach, Psychotherapist 
and Author, to Hayley Payne, GCCG and Nathan Gregory, 2GNHSFT. 
 

2.7 Learning Disability (LD) Update 
  
The Learning Disability Partnership Board continues to play an active role in 
joining up health and social care and providing feedback on how the lives of 
people with a learning disability are being impacted. 
  

2.7.1 Transforming Care 
The CCG continues to meet its commitment to deliver timely CTRs (Care and 
Treatment Reviews) for each person placed in in-patient units, whether placed 
in county or out of county. These are now 100% up to date. Blue Light Meetings 
are also routinely held to attempt to prevent all further admissions to in-patient 
units wherever possible. 
  
Mortality reviews for people with a learning disability are a national requirement. 
The CCG has now formed a multi-agency review group and individual deaths 
are now routinely reviewed. A newsletter describing progress has been 
published and more communication directed at GP practices is being planned. 
  

2.7.2 Quality in LD Services 
The ‘experts by experience’ quality checking through Inclusion Gloucestershire 
has now been extended to patients in in-patient units. In addition the 
programme now includes people with physical disabilities and mental health 
issues. A Quality Portal is being developed to give practitioners real time 
access to available quality information. 
  

2.7.3 Employment 
The GEM (Going the Extra Mile) project is now up and running. This project 
provides work opportunities for those people furthest from the labour market. 

Page 69



 6 

Funded by the Big Lottery Fund this programme provides employment 
mentoring to a wide range of people with a disability. A number of vulnerable 
individuals have already been placed in employment. 
  
The CCG has supplied a full time employment liaison person to further the 
efforts of people with disabilities gaining access to employment opportunities. 
  
An internship programme to take disabled school leavers and place them into 
integrated work/learning opportunities is now being expanded, having achieved 
significant and successful results in its first year of operation.  

 
2.8 Gloucestershire Workplace Health and Wellbeing Project   

 
Recruitment and engagement of the workplace wellbeing charter has been 
completed and the target of 40 businesses exceeded. This includes exceeding 
the target of recruiting 10 large businesses. 30 organisations have now 
achieved accreditation. The workplace charter currently exceeds 18,000 
employees. The Prevention and Self-Care Board has recommended an 
additional £50,000 to develop this project further. 
 
Calculations suggest that a 1% percentage improvement in sickness and 
absence rates year on year will result in savings of approximately £2 million 
over 5 years to the NHS. There are also benefits to the wider health system 
(i.e. reduction in prevalence of non-communicable disease, reduction in health 
service utilisation, continuity of care) and wider economic savings (i.e. 
productivity) are not included in this model and therefore these estimated are 
conservative. 
 

2.9 GCCG, the first CCG in England to participate in the Insights Programme 
 
The CCG has signed up to take part in The Insights Programme.  The Insights 
Programme aims to support people from under-represented groups (e.g. 
people from ethnic minority backgrounds, people with a disability, women) to 
develop the skills required to become an NHS Non-Executive Director.  
Gloucestershire CCG is the first CCG to participate in the programme in 
England. The first participant’s placement started in September 2017; she will 
be supported by a GCCG Lay Member ‘buddy’, Alan Elkin. 
 

2.10 Hot Topics in Health for care home, nursing home, domiciliary care and 
 agency nursing staff 
 

On 1 November 2017 GCCG hosted the second annual Hot Topics in Health 
and Care Conference.  201 delegates attended from a range of work settings 
including care homes, nursing homes, domiciliary care and agency nursing 
staff.  Members of the local health community delivered a range of 
presentations on topics such as end of life care, nutrition, pressure ulcer 
prevention and identification, safeguarding, infection control and education.   
 
In addition to the presentation sessions, delegates were able to access an 
information marketplace providing further information and resources on the 
topics discussed on the day. Delegates also had the opportunity to have free flu 
vaccinations funded by GCC Public Health under their flu vaccination 
programme.  Although final figures are awaited it is thought around 80 
vaccinations were provided.  

Page 70



 7 

 
A full evaluation of the event will be undertaken and it is hoped this will become 
a regular annual event providing learning and information to this key staff group 
within the Gloucestershire Health community. 
 

2.11 NHS in Gloucestershire urges people at risk of flu to get protected with a 
 free flu jab 

 
Gloucestershire’s NHS organisations and GCC launched a campaign in 
October 2017 to encourage people who are eligible to get vaccinated against 
flu this winter. 
 
This year the flu vaccine is being offered to children aged two to eight (as a 
nasal spray), people aged 65 and over, pregnant women and anyone who is 
living with a long term condition. 
 
For most healthy people, flu is an unpleasant illness from which they recover 
within a week. However, some people are more susceptible to the effects of flu 
and are at increased risk of developing more serious illnesses such as 
bronchitis and pneumonia, or making existing conditions worse. In serious 
cases, seasonal flu can lead to a stay in hospital. In the worst cases it can 
result in death. 
 
Individuals are likely to be particularly vulnerable if they have a long term 
condition such as asthma, diabetes, liver or heart disease or a weakened 
immune system. The vaccination is also advised for pregnant women because 
both mother and unborn baby are at particular risk from the flu, in some cases 
leading to complications such as premature birth and low birth weight. 
 
This year, Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) has 
been inspired by a campaign run by Birmingham Children’s Hospital in 2016. 
For every staff member who has their flu vaccination, the Trust will work with 
Unicef to purchase a 10p Tetanus jab for a child in the third world as part of a 
‘Get a Jab, Give a Jab’ campaign. 
 
The public flu campaign is supported by three short videos which illustrate the 
importance of taking up the offer of a vaccination. To watch videos and learn 
about the potential consequences of not getting vaccinated, visit 
http://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/flu-free or search the hashtag #FluFree 
on Twitter. 
 

3. Department of Health and NHS England Consultations 
 

Information regarding Department of Health consultations is available via the 
GOV.UK website: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultat
ions 
 
Information regarding NHS England consultations is available via the NHS 
England website: https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/ 
 
These websites also include responses to closed consultations. 

  

Page 71

http://www.gloucestershireccg.nhs.uk/flu-free
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/


 8 

3.1 Relevant open Department of Health consultations 
 
Proposed changes to the statutory scheme to control the cost of branded 
health service medicines 
The Government has consulted on proposals to amend the statutory scheme 
that controls the prices of branded health service medicines. The changes aim 
to align the cost savings to the NHS generated by the scheme more closely 
with those made by the current voluntary Pharmaceutical Price Regulation 
Scheme (PPRS), agreed in 2014. This consultation closed at the end of 
October 2017. https://consultations.dh.gov.uk/pprs/statutory-pharmaceutical-
pricing-scheme/ 
 
Gloucestershire CCG prepared a local response to this national consultation. 
To inform its response the CCG raised awareness of the consultation with local 
NHS providers, the Reducing Clinical Variation Board of One Gloucestershire 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership, the CCG Lay Champion for 
Clinical Effectiveness and the countywide Patient Participation Group Network, 
as well as through the Accountable Officer/ Chair Report to the September 
2017 Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(HCOSC). We are grateful to several of these groups and individuals who 
shared their views with the CCG, which been reflected in our response to the 
consultation. 

 
3.2 Relevant open NHS England consultations 

 
Modernising radiotherapy services in England - Consultation on 
proposed service specification 
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/radiotherapy-service-
specification-consultation/ 
 
NHS England has launched a consultation on radiotherapy services. The 
consultation is seeking feedback on a new specification for adult radiotherapy 
services. 
 
Radiotherapy is a core part of modern cancer treatment. It can cure cancers, 
can assist in alleviating symptoms and is cost effective. It is second only to 
surgery in its effectiveness in treating cancer and around 40% of patients who 
are cured receive radiotherapy as part of or the whole of their treatment. 
 
The development of the proposed service specification sits alongside NHS 
England’s £130 million investment in radiotherapy equipment, which was 
announced last year and is aimed at delivering the vision for radiotherapy 
services. The proposed specification sets out how modernised services should 
be organised across England so that patients can access sustainable, high-
quality and safe treatment. It also describes the benefits of doing things 
differently, and why the changes are needed 
 
The specification has been developed by talking to doctors, nurses, 
radiographers and public and patient engagement groups and was informed by 
a period of stakeholder engagement in 2016. 
 
The consultation period runs from 18 October to 18 December 2017 

 

Page 72

https://consultations.dh.gov.uk/pprs/statutory-pharmaceutical-pricing-scheme/
https://consultations.dh.gov.uk/pprs/statutory-pharmaceutical-pricing-scheme/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/radiotherapy-service-specification-consultation/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/radiotherapy-service-specification-consultation/


 9 

3.3 Department of Health Policies 
 

The following web link provides access to Department of Health Policies: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=d
epartment-of-health 

 

 

4. Section B: Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
 Group (GCCG) primary medical care commissioning 
 update   

These items are for information and noting. 

4.1 Improved access 

The CCG has undertaken ‘due diligence’ on the five preferred GP Cluster 

providers of “Improved Access” to deliver access to primary care appointments 

until 8pm at night during weekdays, with further provision on Saturdays and 

Sundays. Pilots began to “go live” with their core provision during October and 

November 2017.  In terms of innovation nearly all of the preferred bidders wanted 

to pursue expansion of the Primary Care workforce including paramedics, 

physiotherapists, mental health nurses and advanced nurse practitioners.  We 

continue to work with STP partners in developing a joined up, integrated approach 

to implementing these new roles.   

GDoc, the local federation company, will continue to offer Choice+ appointments 

for those clusters which are not pilot sites this year.  We have also commenced 

planning for April 2018 onwards, contacting the remaining 11 clusters to gather 

their plans against core requirements.   

4.2 Productive General Practice 

We are delighted that GCCG has been successful in having not only the first 2 

cohorts, totalling 24 practices, accepted on to the Productive General Practice 

programme, but also a further 9 practices.  This means that Gloucestershire will 

benefit from 33 places, well above our share of the national 20% funding.  This 

represents a significant achievement by the team and all the practices involved in 

demonstrating the commitment and enthusiasm for the programme and the 

planning in dovetailing the initiative with the GPFV, Primary Care Strategy and 

ultimately the STP.  The programme runs from September – December 2017. 

Our STP transformation fund has now resulted in an additional 20 Clinical 

Pharmacists in post across the county whilst two Gloucester City clusters (North 

East Gloucester and South East Gloucester and GHAC) have nurses in place to 

support their frail population.  North Cotswolds will also focus on frailty.  The 

Repeat Prescribing Hub in Berkeley Vale has, in the first 14 weeks, handled 3149 

paper repeats and 3545 telephone repeats resulting in 1,049 stopped items.  

Practice administrative and receptionist time released has been used to review 

clinical correspondence which has in turn saved GP time.   

Page 73

https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health


 10 

Stroud & Berkeley Vale and Gloucester City localities continue integrated working 

with providers within a ‘place-based’ approach.  Both the dementia nurse in 

practice pilot and Mental Health nurse specialists working in inner-city Gloucester 

practices pilot are being evaluated currently. We will continue to use our system 

wide learning from this work, and elsewhere, to develop our locality and cluster 

infrastructure to more integrated working structures and will report progress later in 

the year. 

We have now advertised our ten year contract to deliver an APMS Primary Care 

Medical List and an Urgent Primary Care Centre in Gloucester City.  The 

specification requires a model which will support health related behaviour change 

to help deliver a reduction in health inequalities; demonstrates integration with 

other local health and care partners, Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) 

organisations and community groups; ensures long term sustainable primary care 

and provides an Urgent Primary Care Centre for those people who need to be 

seen urgently by a primary care professional. 

4.3 Decision on GP Practice changes 

The CCG’s Primary Care Commissioning Committee has approved changes 

relating to two GP practices in Gloucester. 

The practices, College Yard and Highnam Surgery and Cheltenham Road Surgery, 

held discussions and developed proposals for a merger and carried out a 

consultation with patients which ended in August 2017. 

They proposed the changes with a view to ‘creating stronger, more resilient GP 

services for their patients into the future’. 

The merger will bring a number of benefits to patients, including a wider range of 

skills and expertise in the practice, an increased number of services and a greater 

choice of appointments. It will offer more secure staffing levels for the longer term 

and enable the practice team to use resources more flexibly to meet patient needs. 

Looking ahead to how services would be provided in the future, the two practices 

felt it was not practical to manage and staff three surgery sites. After considerable 

thought, they proposed that services would no longer be offered from the College 

Yard site with the Highnam Surgery building and the Cheltenham Road Surgery 

building remaining open. 

The merger of the practices will come into effect from April 2018, with the closure 

of the College Yard Surgery building planned by April 2019, allowing time for a 

smooth transition for patients. 

A new, combined practice boundary will be drawn to include all of the areas 

covered by the current practices, with patients attending the site which suits them 

best.  

The practices recognise that for some patients travel times to the surgery buildings 

will be longer, whilst for others they will be the same or shorter. 

Page 74



 11 

The practices will now work to identify vulnerable patients and consider ways of 

providing community advice and support before the closure of College Yard 

Surgery building happens. Patients registered with College Yard and Highnam 

Surgery will remain on the merged practice’s patient list and new patients in the 

area around the College Yard site can continue to register with that surgery. 

The practices will work closely with GCCG and the Patient Participation Groups 

over the coming months to plan for the changes. 

 
5. Section C: Local Providers’ updates  
 

This Section includes updates from 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT), Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT),  
 

These items are for information and noting. 
 

5.0 Update regarding new leadership arrangements between 
 2gether NHS Foundation Trust (2GNHSFT) and Gloucestershire 
 Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) 
 

On 20 September 2017, the Boards of 2gether NHS Foundation Trust and 
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust, confirmed that they were proposing 
to explore the opportunity to develop a new physical and mental health offer in 
Gloucestershire, with the expectation that this would result in the coming 
together of the two Trusts to form a new look organisation.    
 
To support this, the two Trusts have agreed to establish new leadership 
arrangements from 1January 2018, with a Joint Chair and a Joint Chief 
Executive.  The joint Chair and Chief Executive will then set plans in motion to 
bring the two organisations together, with the aim of providing seamless mental 
and physical health services to patients, service users and carers.   Ingrid 
Barker has been appointed as the Joint Chair Designate and interviews for the 
Joint Chief Executive are progressing.  The over-riding ambition of both Trusts 
is to explore with pace and purpose the opportunity to combine the collective 
resources, knowledge, innovation and expertise within both organisations to 
provide benefit to service users, carers, colleagues and system partners. 

 

5.1 
2
gether NHS Foundation Trust (

2
GNHSFT) 

 
5.1.1 Perinatal Campaign Receives National Recognition 
 

The Trust and its partners in the Gloucestershire Tackling Stigma group were 
highly commended in the inaugural perinatal mental health awards organised 
by the Maternal Mental Health Alliance and Mums and Babies in Mind.  
The awards were announced in September 2017, at the first Annual UK 
Maternal Mental Health Alliance Conference at Imperial College, London, to 
recognise best practice and achievement in the categories of perinatal mental 
health education and training, perinatal mental health awareness raising, peer 
support and transgenerational service. 

Page 75



 12 

 
The Trust and partners were nominated for their work on an extensive perinatal 
mental health campaign, including designing and distributing perinatal 
postcards to hospitals, clinics, GP surgeries, children’s centres and other public 
spaces. 
 
The group created infographic posters, which highlighted key statistics around 
perinatal mental health, and used social media to promote education 
messages, signpost and raise awareness. They also worked with local media 
on stories about perinatal mental health, including one about postpartum 
psychosis. A well-woman in pregnancy pack was also devised, which is given 
to women at booking, and gives information on mental health difficulties and 
techniques to help women keep well. 

 
5.1.2 Gloucester Hub 
 

Work is nearing completion on 2GNHSFT’s new Gloucester Hub at Pullman 
Place, in Great Western Road, near Gloucestershire Royal Hospital.   
The four-storey building has undergone complete refurbishment over the last 
12 months, and will, from November, become home to many teams currently 
based at other Gloucestershire sites.  
 
The teams moving into the building include the Perinatal Mental Health Team, 
Better 2 Work, Recovery, Accommodation, Gloucestershire Recovery in 
Psychosis, Mental Health Intermediate Care Team and Crisis and Home 
Resolution Treatment Team. Service users and carers have been notified of the 
move by their respective teams.  
 
Sites being vacated include Albion Chambers, in Eastgate Street, Fieldview, in 
Coney Hill, 44 London Road and 18 Denmark Road.  

 
5.1.3 AHPP Conference 
 

2GNHSFT hosted a conference for Allied Health and Psychological 
Professionals (AHPP), which was attended by the Trust’s own AHPPs as well 
as colleagues from partner Trusts and organisations. Guest speakers included 
Dr Joanne Fillingham, Clinical Director for Allied Health Professions at NHS 
Improvement.  
 
The event served as a celebration of best practice in the AHPP, as well as a 
reflection of what more can be achieved by AHPPs working within clinical 
teams and communities. There was also a focus on research and opportunities 
to embed research into AHPP work.  
 

5.1.4 World Mental Health Day 
 

2017 World Mental Health Day was celebrated on October 10, and 2gether 
worked alongside partners to deliver a range of activities based around the 
theme of mental health in the workplace. These included ‘tea and talk’ sessions 
with local employers Superdry, Tesco and GL1. Other activity associated with 
World Mental Health Day included participating in a Polish Healthfest jointly 
hosted by GCCG and Healthwatch Gloucestershire in October 2017, and the 
finale for the Heads Up Cheltenham year of action. 2GNHSFT Director of 
Engagement and Integration, Professor Jane Melton, was also invited to 

Page 76



 13 

Buckingham Palace for a reception hosted by HRH the Duke and Duchess of 
Cambridge and HRH Prince Henry of Wales. The event marked a significant 
shift in understanding the importance of mental health and celebrated the 
impact of positive action. The prestigious event was held to acknowledge 
significant campaign work undertaken to tackle the stigma surrounding mental 
illness and Jane represented the many colleagues across agencies in 
Gloucestershire and Herefordshire who collectively work together on these 
issues.  

 
5.1.5 Recognition for Trust Work 
 

The work of 2gether has recently been recognised both locally and nationally 
with invitations to participate in a number of forums.  
 
These include an interview given by Chair Ruth FitzJohn on the Victoria 
Derbyshire programme on BBC 2, when the focus of the broadcast was around 
best practice in mental health trusts. There was also an invitation to present at 
NHS Improvement workshops on best practice engagement with service users 
and staff.  

 
5.1.6 The Newgale Initiative 
 

Young people experiencing their first episode of psychosis are being helped to 
increase their confidence and develop life skills through a 2GTNHSFT scheme. 
The Newgale Initiative is run by 2gether’s Gloucestershire Recovery in 
Psychosis (GRiP) and funded by Barnwood Trust and GRiPPERs. 
 
Recent attendees gave a presentation to loved ones, 2gether staff and 
GRiPPERs about their experiences on the course. They spoke about the 
variety of educational activities, including kayaking, climbing and high ropes 
they had taken part in, and explained how it taught them about comfort zones, 
goal setting, how they can push to achieve things and also working in a group. 
They then shared the story of how they organised the whole day, from getting 
everyone up in the morning and ready to go, to working together to complete a 
challenge. 

 

5.2 Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) 
 
5.2.1 Annual General Meeting and Exhibition 

  
The Trust AGM and Exhibition was held on 27 September 2017 at 
Gloucestershire University, Oxstalls Campus.  It provided an opportunity to 
showcase the work of GCSNHST and some of our partners with over 90 people 
attending over the afternoon.  We have produced a short video which provides 
an overview of our performance in 2017/18 which can be accessed via Annual 
Review Video https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=z5ycgTXJO4A&t=21s 
 

5.2.2 Katie’s Open Door  
 

The Trust has been at the forefront of the “Freedom to Speak Up” agenda, and 
we have well established policies and procedures to support colleagues raising 
concerns. “Katie’s open door” was launched on the 15th August 2017 and is in 
addition to the Trust’s Raising Concerns at Work Policy. Katie’s Open Door is 

Page 77

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=z5ycgTXJO4A&t=21s


 14 

an additional route for colleagues in the Trust to contact the Chief Executive 
directly and anonymously if preferred to raise any concerns or issues.   
 
The idea came from learning in other NHS Trusts and the many meetings the 
Chief Executive has had with colleagues. The scheme is intended to be a more 
informal way for colleagues to feedback directly to the Chief Executive when 
something is not going quite right or to raise an issue or an idea. Any feedback 
will remain completely confidential if requested and will be reviewed by the 
Chief Executive each week.  Feedback will also be discussed with the 
Executive Team, if appropriate, to agree follow up actions. Colleagues will 
receive a personal response from the Chief Executive within 14 days. “Katie’s 
open door” builds on our commitment to employee engagement, our CORE 
values, as well as our focus on quality and safety. 

 
5.2.3 Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy Statement 
 

The Trust has reconfirmed its commitment to ensuring that no modern slavery 
or human trafficking takes place in any part of our business or our supply chain.  
We have approved a clear policy statement to confirm this commitment 

 
5.2.4 Care Quality Commission 
 

The Trust submitted its Annual Routine Provider Information Request (PIR) in 
October 2017.   This has provided a valuable opportunity to complete a self-
assessment of the Trust against the CQC domains and core characteristics.  
We are expecting the PIR, alongside other available information to be used to 
inform the CQC approach to its annual inspection. 

 
5.2.5 School Aged Immunisation Service 
 

The Trust has been working to ensure the successful deployment of the new 
enhanced school age immunisation service, which now includes the childhood 
influenza programme. The influenza programme began on 5 October 2017. 
Recruitment has been completed, with colleagues receiving training on the 
refreshed clinical standards which have been developed to support the new 
offer.   
 
A comprehensive communication programme has been developed which is 
initially focusing on parents and carers as well as in schools which will be the 
main location for the delivery of the service.  A wider public campaign has also 
been developed to promote the health benefits of immunisation. 
 
As part of the new service we have developed a new web-based application 
that will allow the recording of consent for vaccination online as well as support 
better performance management to ensure good coverage of the immunisation 
programme is delivered in Gloucestershire. 

 
5.2.6 Minor Injury and Illness Unit 
 

Our Minor Injury and Illness Units have continued to respond to increased 
demand, activity surges and workforce challenges.  We have been to working 
to minimise the impact on our ability to deliver consistent and timely services for 
patients.     

 

Page 78



 15 

5.2.7 Adult Occupational Therapy Review  
 

Following a Commissioner led review of Gloucester Care Services NHS Trust 
Adult Occupational Therapy (OT) services a new service model for OT in the 
Integrated Community teams is being developed to be delivered within a 
significantly reduced financial envelope. 
 
To support the new model, we are now working to realign the occupational 
therapy services in the community hospitals to be managed in a consistent 
model under the Community hospital matron. The hand therapy service will 
also move to be managed under the Musculo-skeletal Service (MSK), creating 
an integrated MSK therapy service. 
 
For the Integrated Community Team (ICT) offer, a high level agreement has 
been reached on how occupational therapy will be provided within the ICT 
localities. This includes an increased focus on rehabilitation to enable people to 
remain as independent as possible.    
 
As the commissioners have confirmed that they will be seeking to reduce the 
current level of funding in a phased way over two years (2018-2020) 
Operational services are aiming to have a clear plan developed by the end of 
November 2017.     
 
As part of the transformation of this service the Professional Head of 
Occupational Therapy will continue to provide valuable input to ensure the new 
occupational therapy offer reflects best clinical practice and supports the 
national and local changes in health and social care provision. 
 

5.2.8 Delayed Transfers of Care 
 

HCOSC members will be aware of the focus that is being given both within 
GCS operational teams and across the wider health and care system in 
Gloucestershire to reduce delays in the transfer of care (DToCs).   
  
As a system we are collectively working to support improvement in the 
nationally reported DToC performance which would require us to achieve below 
3.5% DToCs in our acute care settings.    
 
There are strengthened oversight arrangements to support this work, which we 
recognise needs a whole system approach to ensure individuals are able to 
receive the right care at the right time across all care settings. 

 
5.2.9 2017/18 Self-assessment of the Trust’s for Emergency Preparedness,  
 Resilience and Response arrangements 
 

NHS England published the process for 2017/18 Emergency Preparedness, 
Resilience and Response (EPRR) Assurance in July 2017. This included the 
requirement for the Trust to complete a self-assessment against the NHS core 
standards for Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response 
arrangements 
 
The outcome of the self-assessment has been reviewed by the GCSNHST 
Audit and Assurance Committee which was assured that against 31 of the core 
standards which are applicable to the organisation, GCS is: 

Page 79



 16 

 is fully compliant with 28 of these core standards; and 

 will become fully compliant with 3 of these core standards (related to the 
areas of training and testing) by April 2018. 
 

Following  formal feedback from the confirm and challenge meeting held in 
September 2017, the final self-assessment, agreed 18/19 action plan  and 
confirmation of the “Substantively Assured” rating has been agreed by the 
GCSNHST Board. 

 
5.2.10 Estate Development and Updates 

 
The Tewkesbury hospital works have now been completed with the inpatient 
services and theatre moved back into the hospital in early October.    

 
5.2.11 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust – Joint appointments for 
 care of the elderly consultants 
 

We have been working closely with colleagues in GHNHST to review the 
current arrangements to provide consultant support to our community hospitals 
and community services with a particular focus on supporting people living with 
frailty.  As a result of this work, we have agreed to explore new ways of working 
based on a new consultant job plan which would provide a greater locality focus 
aligned to the ‘place based’ working.  We have now been successful in 
appointing the first consultant to such a post and we are looking to create 
further opportunities to build and learn from the approach. 
 

5.2.12 Joint working between Gloucestershire Care Services and MacMillan 
 
On 6 September 2017 we had the opportunity to meet with our colleagues from 
MacMillan to celebrate the partnership working that has supported the 
development of the Next Steps Programme. We were delighted to launch a 
new video which has been developed with participants who have shared their 
stories on how the service has helped them in their next steps.  YouTube - 
http://tinyurl.com/y8zenpf8 
 

5.2.13 Nursing Associates and our work with the University of Gloucestershire 
 

On 1 September 2017, the Director of Nursing had the opportunity to meet 
some of our trainee Nursing Associates who started their educational 
programme with the University of Gloucestershire in April 2017.  
Our trainees have shared that 6 months into their programme they feel valued 
by the Trust and remain excited about what they have learnt in terms of patient 
care and team working. 
 
Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust launches school nurse text 
service for young people 
 
A new text messaging service for the county’s 11-19 year olds provides 
confidential advice about health and wellbeing.  Messages sent to the 
dedicated number (07507 333351) are delivered to a secure website, and 
responded to by a Gloucestershire Care Services (GCS) School Nurse. The 
service is available Monday to Friday from 9am to 4.30pm, excluding bank 
holidays. Automatic bounce-backs will respond to incoming messages out of 
hours.  

Page 80

http://tinyurl.com/y8zenpf8


 17 

 
The aim is to improve access to healthcare for young people further, and will 
offer support to young people with questions relating to various issues including 
- relationships, bullying, healthy lifestyle, anxiety, drugs, smoking, stress, body 
worries, alcohol, self-harm and sexual health.  
 
As well as giving advice, the School Nursing Team can help direct young 
people to additional services and other support. Although the service is 
confidential and young people do not need to disclose their name, if there is a 
concern for an individual’s safety, there are safeguarding procedures in place. 
Young people will still be able to see a School Nurse face to face in a school / 
college drop in or other settings. 
 

 

5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 (GHNHSFT) 
 
5.3.1 TrakCare 
 

In December 2016, GHNHSFT deployed a new patient administration system as 
the first phase of its journey towards creating an electronic patient record system 
for the Trust. Despite considerable planning and preparation the Trust and its staff 
have encountered a significant number of challenges with the new system since 
go-live almost a year ago. Notably, the system deployment has impacted on the 
operational performance of the Trust and regrettably impacted upon aspects of 
patient experience - most notably the experience of patients requiring outpatient 
care. 
 
Whilst considerable progress has been made, the deployment of TrakCare within 
the Trust continues to impact on operational performance and we recognise that 
the recovery is taking too long and our approach needs to change.  As a result, the 
Trust will be accessing the support of a 'recovery task force'. This team; comprising 
experts from NHS Digital's Provider Support Unit, senior people from around the 
country who have supported similar recoveries, and the Chief Information Officer 
from North Tees (and members of his team); will work with the Trust to develop a 
comprehensive recovery plan. North Tees Trust deployed TrakCare two years ago 
and following some deployment issues now have a system that is increasingly 
meeting their needs.  
 
The recovery programme will have three strands - stabilisation (actions to stop 
making the situation worse), recovery (the processes, protocols and retraining of 
staff) and system development (to enable us to begin to exploit the potential 
benefits of the system). 
 
The 'task force' will visit the Trust in the week commencing 13 November 2017 to 
undertake a deep dive, which in turn will inform the development of a 
comprehensive recovery programme. In order to signal this new approach, the 
GHNHSFT CEO will take over the role of Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for 
both SmartCare and TrakCare Recovery.  In the interim the Trust has delayed the 
deployment of any further developments of the TrakCare system to allow our 
resources to be targeted at recovery. 

 

Page 81



 18 

5.3.2 Annual staff awards  
 

Hundreds of dedicated staff were recognised for their outstanding contribution to 
patient care at the Trust’s annual staff awards ceremony at Hatherley Manor Hotel 
in September 2017. Nearly 400 nominations were received for awards across 18 
different categories. Long serving staff were also recognised for their loyalty during 
the event. Key sponsors who make the event happen thanks to their generous 
contributions have already pledged support for next year’s event.  

 

5.3.3 Team building military-style  
 

A team of staff, led by Chief Executive Deborah Lee, faced up to an epic army 
challenge on Dartmoor recently to raise funds for local cancer patients. The 
hospital team, calling themselves the Gloucestershire Warriors, spent a muddy 
weekend competing against 16 NHS Trusts from across the South West in this 
annual event, organised by the Army Reservists, which tested their endurance and 
teamwork with gruelling military style challenges. Staff from across the trust 
volunteered to take on the challenge, with both clinical and non-clinical staff 
including therapists, strategists and administrators working as a team. Thousands 
of pounds have been raised (money continues to come in) which will make a direct 
impact on the experience of local cancer patients through Focus, the charitable 
fund for the Gloucestershire Oncology Centre.  
 
Teamwork is crucial in the hospitals and this challenge also helped to develop the 
culture of working together to give the best possible care for patients – leading that 
culture from the top through the personal involvement of the Chief Executive.  

 
5.3.4 New power for Gloucester  
 

Work has started on a new combined heat and power plant at GRH, which will 
mark a further a step-change reduction of the Trust’s carbon footprint. The 
principal component of the new installation is a new combined heat and power unit 
(CHP). CHP is a great technology that uses a gas fuelled engine to produce 
electricity, while heat is collected from the hot exhaust gases of the engine to help 
heat the hospital. The new energy project will see supplier Vital Energi design and 
install a 2.5MW CHP system which will be integrated into the Trust’s existing 
electrical, heating and hot water systems. The project also includes Vital Energi 
working with the local electricity distribution network operator (WPD) to bring in a 
new High Voltage electricity supply to the hospital in order to increase electricity 
supply resilience to the hospital estate and enable the connection of the CHP unit 
to the national grid.  

 
5.3.5 An education for life  
 

Collaborative Learning in Practice (CLiP) is an exciting new way of supporting 
University of Gloucestershire’s student nurses in practice. CLiP encourages 
mentors and coaches to step back and allow students to manage and deliver 
patient care. This clinical support is achieved through a team approach, with 
multiple students working together in the same clinical area to deliver and manage 
the care of a group of patients from the very start of their programme.  
 
As students progress they will be encouraged to coach less experienced or more 
junior trainees, encouraging the development of a learning culture throughout their 
time in practice. Students are expected to take ownership for their individual 

Page 82



 19 

learning needs, with their mentors/coaches being encouraged to take a coaching 
or questioning approach to their clinical teaching. It is hoped that this exciting, 
supportive approach to teaching in practice will produce highly skilled, professional 
nurses who are ready for practice when they qualify. Gloucestershire Hospitals 
have partnered with the University of Gloucestershire to host the first BSc Nursing 
Students. The new curriculum focuses on developing the students’ skills to deliver 
high quality patient care. When on placement on our wards, through CLiP, the 
students will develop competencies, values and confidence to deliver person-
centred care. 

 
5.3.6 Annual Members’ Meeting 

About 80 members of the public attended the Trust’s Annual Members' Meeting 
(AMM) in October 2017 to learn more about the progress, challenges and 
opportunities facing Gloucestershire Royal Hospital, Cheltenham General Hospital 
and Stroud Maternity Unit over the last year. As well as reporting on last year’s 
performance the meeting was also an opportunity to learn more about our plans for 
the future. A key component of the evening was a demonstration by Consultant 
Orthopaedic and Trauma Surgeon, Peter Kempshall, who showed what high 
quality care looked like for patients with fractured hips. The work that Peter and the 
team have done has resulted in a 36.9% reduction in death from fracture neck of 
femur, in just one year and has resulted in 18 fewer deaths over the last year. This 
has been achieved through a collaborative and systematic approach to continuous 
quality improvement based on best practice elsewhere. 

5.3.7 Staff recognition  

The GRH maternity ward won the Outstanding Practice Learning Environment 
Award, while colleague Rowena Bulacan won the Outstanding Mentor Award at 
the University of Worcester Mentor Awards in October 2017.  
 
Staff in cardiology services were delighted to be the first cardiology programme in 

the UK to receive ‘overall satisfaction’ rating as judged by trainee doctors working 

in the service. This is particularly impressive given that two years ago the 

programme was rated 13 programme in the UK. 

6. Recommendations 
 

This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are invited to note 

the contents. 

 
 

Dr Andrew Seymour    Mary Hutton  
Clinical Chair      Accountable Officer 
NHS Gloucestershire CCG    NHS Gloucestershire CCG 
 
 
 
1 November 2017 
 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Director of Public Health Report

14th November 2017

Supporting People in Vulnerable Circumstances

From Supporting People Programme to Settled, Secure and Safe Lives Policy 
2016 – 2019

1. Purpose

This paper provides a brief summary of the development of the Settled, Secure and 
Safe Lives Policy and describes some of the commissioning activity currently being 
undertaken under this policy framework.  The Gloucestershire Health and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to note the information provided.

2. Introduction 

The Settled, Secure and Safe Lives Policy (SSSL)1 2016 – 2019 sets out the 
Council’s approach to working with people, communities and partners to ensure 
support for people in vulnerable circumstances.  It covers those individuals and 
families, who are vulnerable due to their circumstances or personal needs, defined 
as:

‘An individual may be in vulnerable circumstances if they do not have and cannot 
otherwise access the resources to help them cope with daily living. At times 
people may experience difficulties with everyday living on account of financial, 
educational, health, employment, learning, language, behavioural, family and social 
or other circumstances or any combination of these. 

Vulnerability can be a variable state, and can occur at challenging points in life such 
as bereavement, divorce and transitions from services. It can be temporary, 
episodic or recurring due, for example, to mental distress; it can be ongoing a 
static state or fluctuate over time…  
…The aim is to ensure targeted support is available to enable people to become 
resilient; re-connected; independent; engaged and contributing in their 
community.’

The policy, in line with the Health and Wellbeing and Mental Health strategies and 
the county wide enabling active communities policy, exhibits a commitment to 
tackling health inequalities and influencing equality of opportunity; recognising and 
addressing the gap between those who do well and those who do not. The partners 
will strive positively and creatively to close the gap for the most vulnerable.

1. http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8217  (Item 8)

Page 85

Agenda Item 10

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=8217


3. Background

Provision for support to adults in vulnerable circumstances has previously been 
commissioned under the auspices of Public Health targeted services and the 
Supporting People Strategy 2011 – 2015, the implementation of which has been 
overseen by the Supporting People Partnership Board, made up of District Councils, 
Health, Probation and GCC. 

The Partnership worked to an agreed direction of travel which sought to maximise 
people’s ability to maintain independent living and achieve: 

 A shift towards developing more flexible, generic services that will help the 
programme to adapt to shifts in the pattern of needs;

 A reduced reliance on accommodation-based services; 
 More emphasis on providing support to employment, support into education and 

training, and the promotion of health and well being; and 
 Maximise opportunities to intervene to avoid, delay or divert demand from social 

care, housing and health services.

A series of detailed commissioning plans to implement the SP Strategy were 
developed through the SP Partnership to transform services to better meet need, 
reduce spend, and support existing service users positively through transition.  The 
Settled, Secure and Safe Lives Policy builds on the engagement, agreements and 
learning achieved through the Supporting People Strategy as we continue to work 
with partners to challenge our current ways of working in pursuit of good, lasting 
outcomes for people, with a focus on: 

 a joined up and complementary approach to respond to need, providing 
information and support for people to do more for themselves and their families; 

 investing in community capacity to provide support where people live; 
 reconnecting adults with their community; 
 using intensive support to promote recovery and long term stability; and making a 

lasting difference and targeting specialist help on those with complex needs. 

4. Current Commissioning Activity

The following summarises the key areas of commissioning activity currently being 
undertaken in partnership under the auspices of the Settled, Secure and Safe Lives Policy.  It 
does not reflect the entire provision but illustrates some of the principles being taken forward 
in commissioning activity designed in accordance with the Policy.

Community Based Support

Investment in a generic community based support service (CBS) was the key 
enabling vehicle of the implementation of the Supporting People Strategy. This 
investment aimed to support transitions and reduced reliance on accommodation 
based services for existing and future service users. 

Page 86



Following extensive engagement with partners and service users former specialist 
floating support services were remodelled to create a generic community based 
support service. 

This involved a shift from a range of specialist floating support services, with 
relatively small, specific and static client groups receiving long term 1-1 support, to 
the creation of a short term, generic community based support service to stabilise 
and support service users to connect to the people, activities and services in their 
communities (of both place and interest) for longer term positive outcomes.  A key 
aspect verbalised through the service user engagement was to see service users as 
assets and reflect their strengths in person led planning – asking professionals to 
‘…see the future in positive terms, and build on our dreams not fears.’

Current provision: Green Square and P3 provide housing related community based 
support across the County. The service is available to people at risk of losing their 
home or in need of practical support to develop skills around: tenancy management, 
maintaining their homes, maximising their income and access to work and 
volunteering. Using a combination of a drop-in service, more intensive one to one 
support and group work, individuals are supported to acquire the information and 
skills they need to make positive changes in their lives and make connections to the 
people, places and activities in their communities that will enable them to live 
independently and flourish in the longer term.  The service works with service users 
to help them build their personal resilience to be able to cope more in the future.

A personalisation fund unlocks barriers to individuals accessing and maintaining 
independent accommodation.  The creation of community capacity and connections 
are supported through ‘New Friends Networks’ and group activities, e.g. Healthy 
Eating cookery groups; a variety of local peer support groups, e.g. ‘Rollercoaster’ a 
mental health peer support group;  and stimulating activities in local communities 
e.g. walking groups.

The service supports people in any form of accommodation and across a continuum 
of need from early intervention and prevention through to intensive support for 
people in crisis/ high level and complex need.  Where appropriate, CBS will signpost 
individuals to other more specialist housing related support community and 
accommodation based providers. 

During 4 years of delivery more than 8,500 people have benefited from the one to 
one service alone. In the same period there have been over 20,000 attendances at 
community drop-ins and group sessions. 

The service supports all age groups; however the significant demand to date has 
been within the 18 – 64 years age range. Both P3 and Greensquare are engaged in 
related partner activity e.g. social prescribing and VCS information and advice 
projects. 

During the lifetime of the current contracts there has been a significant increase in 
levels of referrals from social care and health professionals as understanding and 
confidence in the service has increased.

Page 87



An important aim of the redesign of CBS was to help people who needed more 
intensive support provided in accommodation based services to access such 
support.  This in many cases could necessitate a temporary move to a different area, 
with the intention that CBS could then enable individuals to retain any positive 
connections with their place of origin.  The service will then have responsibility for 
supporting subsequent resettlement to the community to achieve successful 
independent living.  This relationship with accommodation based support is 
demonstrated with the attached homelessness pathway diagram (appendix A) and 
described below.

Accommodation Based Support Services

The Supporting People Partnership Strategy sought to shift investment into 
community based housing related support, with a reduced scale of accommodation 
based services focused on supporting vulnerable people with complex, multiple and 
high level needs. These services, working in partnership with community based 
housing related support services, support service users to reconnect at the earliest 
opportunity to the neighbourhoods and communities where they have attachments, 
to enable them to maintain independent living in the longer term. 

The accommodation based services for Homelessness, Mental Health and Ex-
offenders have been engaged in a transitional process to shift to deal with complex, 
multiple and high level needs and to challenge behaviours in a supportive 
empowering environment.  People with no, or low levels of need, are supported by 
securing appropriate housing with community based housing related support 
provided on a short term basis, until the service user can fully sustain independent 
living.

Following extensive service user engagement key messages were incorporated into 
the design of the homelessness pathway including the desire for smaller schemes 
with defensible personal space when in crisis. They called for boundaries to be 
adhered to, with consequences when behaviours unsafe for themselves and others 
(including evictions), but with support to reach out to them when excluded/in crisis as 
reflected this was when they were at their most vulnerable and/or most likely to 
engage.  That homelessness should focus on ‘whole of life’ issues not just those 
linked to housing, workforce should have skills and knowledge to deal with range of 
issues and assist joining up the services needed by service users through the 
alignment and joint commissioning of services.

Current arrangements:  The accommodation based support provisions operate 
within a new broader partnership homelessness pathway (see attached appendix A) 
designed to move people quickly off the streets and into the most appropriate 
services, housing options and communities.  The pathway depicts not only the role 
and relationship of Community Based Support Services described above – but also 
interventions commissioned by partner agencies.  For example the joint investment 
in an assertive homeless outreach service has been vital in identifying rough 
sleepers and seeking to get them off the street and into the homeless provision.  
Since 2013 the remodelled assessment centres for people with complex needs and 
chaotic lives has demonstrated very high levels of positive planned moves at 90% 
and improvements have been demonstrated across the wider homelessness 

Page 88



provision also.  The prevalence of multiple and complex needs, particularly the 
prevalence of mental ill health and substance misuse, remains a consistent shared 
issue across the system.
  
Through our partnership working and monitoring across the system/pathway we 
have been able to identify a significant number of service users who often move in 
and out of services, including the repeated involvement of Health and the Police, and 
who repeatedly fail to sustain accommodation due to their very high and complex 
needs. A successful partnership application to the Department of Communities and 
Local Government (DCLG) has attracted investment of up to £990k over four years 
for a county wide Social Impact Bond to provide personalised support to rough 
sleepers and individuals entrenched within the homelessness system, with Link 
workers (Navigators) working with relatively small caseloads supporting each 
individual to navigate their journey away from homelessness to positive, sustainable 
outcomes.  This new service is currently being mobilised and we will monitor its 
impact on demand across the pathway.

Direction of Travel: The contract expiry dates of the provisions described above have been 
aligned to enable the council to develop an EU compliant procurement model which 
considers the ‘whole system’ and provides comprehensive support to people in vulnerable 
circumstances. The model will address fluctuating patterns of demand across accommodation 
and community based support and achieves effective pathways to independent living across 
the system.

Extensive service user, partner and stakeholder engagement is currently being undertaken to 
review the current arrangements and support the development of a procurement model to 
enable us to secure appropriate provisions to be in place from October 2018.

Specialist Community Based Services: Domestic Abuse

Domestic abuse (DA) takes many forms. There is increasing awareness and understanding of 
coercive control, i.e. the emotional and psychological abuse of a partner, through threats and 
restrictions, as well as physical violence; domestic abuse is now understood to be far more 
prevalent than previously assumed. The impact on children of witnessing domestic abuse is 
well known. In the short and long term, the emotional, academic and life chances of these 
children are damaged.  There are high economic, social and human costs on public services, 
communities and individuals as a result of domestic abuse. More effort and resources targeted 
on prevention and early intervention can reduce the impact domestic abuse has on attainment, 
health and wellbeing and crime and disorder.  Specialist support services for victims were 
designed to provide a range of ‘wrap around’ services; both pre and post crisis 
interventions to provide interventions to prevent the escalation of abuse and promote 
integration and stability within the community.

Current arrangements: The specialist DA support service is delivered countywide 
provided by Westlea Housing Association operating as Greensquare. It is available to all 
victims of domestic abuse regardless of gender or sexuality. 
It works on a community based, flexible model supporting a continuum of need that 
includes early intervention and a safe response for those families most at risk. The 
current service includes; Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVA) support for 

Page 89



high risk victims and the courts, floating support for medium/ standard risk victims, 
group work programmes, help desk (triage), access to places of safety and healthy 
relationship work for teenagers in schools. There is huge demand for the GDASS 
services:

 2014/15: 3101 referrals 
 2015/16: 3558 referrals

The council also jointly funds a perpetrator programme in partnership with Gloucestershire 
Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG) and the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (OPPC). This provision offers an accredited 25 week group work programme 
for male perpetrators (21yrs+) and a ‘women’s safety worker’ for female partners/ ex 
partners. Evidence shows that the programme is having some success in getting commitment 
from perpetrators to change their abusive behaviour in the longer term.

Direction of Travel: We have a Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse & Sexual 
Violence Commissioning Strategy & Outcomes Framework 2014/182, which sets 
out a collective commitment by partners to a joint vision, strategic objectives and 
outcomes for DA in Gloucestershire, based on principles of agencies working 
together, aligning budgets and resources where relevant, with the commissioning of 
evidenced based services that address all levels of need and improve outcomes for 
children and adults affected by domestic abuse and/or sexual violence (DASV).  The 
delivery of the strategy is overseen by a partnership DASV Commissioning group 
(DASV CG).

An extensive range of partnership activities have provided an understanding of the current 
service provision and informed future proposals for domestic abuse services in 
Gloucestershire. Activity included service and pathway mapping; national and local data 
analysis; county-wide stakeholder planning event; market engagement and a programme of 
service user engagement.

The DASV CG proposes to improve joint commissioning at a strategic level by creating a 5 
year multi-supplier Framework Agreement divided into specialist themed Lots which will be 
accessible to all participating local partners and align current and future investment across the 
county to:
 maintain the specialist approach for high risk victims and their families;
 shift over time towards prevention and away from being reactive to crises;
 increasingly integrate provision and influence practice across the system;
 support the development of a more confident system wide workforce; and
 collect shared robust intelligence.

This Framework is currently being developed with further market engagement due to 
take place in November.  

2 http://www.glostakeastand.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/DASV-Commissioning-Strategy-
October-14-HWBB-Approved.pdf

Page 90

http://www.glostakeastand.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/DASV-Commissioning-Strategy-October-14-HWBB-Approved.pdf
http://www.glostakeastand.com/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/DASV-Commissioning-Strategy-October-14-HWBB-Approved.pdf


P
age 91



Commissioning of Sexual Health Services

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) has a statutory responsibility for the 
commissioning of specialist sexual health services including contraception. Specialist 
sexual health services are commissioned from Gloucestershire Care Services NHS 
Trust (GCS) covering diagnosis and treatment of sexually transmitted infections and 
provision of contraception. Additionally, GCC commissions long acting reversible 
contraception (LARC) through GP Practices, and emergency hormonal contraception 
through community pharmacy (for under 25 year olds). A range of prevention 
services including community based HIV testing, condom distribution and support for 
people living with HIV are contracted through community based partners. 

Redevelopment of Sexual Health services 

In response to findings from the Gloucestershire Sexual Health Needs Assessment 
and a national reduction in Public Health budgets, a paper was brought to Cabinet in 
December 2016 to redevelop sexual health services in partnership with other key 
stakeholders including GCS, Primary Care (community pharmacy, General 
Practitioners, and Local Medical Committee), and NHS Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG). The paper presented a service model for the delivery 
of sexual health services which incorporated feedback from a public consultation on 
the principles of the redevelopment. 

The redevelopment process, including public consultation, and draft service model 
were presented to lead Cabinet member and Public Health Shadows. The draft 
paper for Cabinet was presented to Shadows for feedback before being finalised and 
presented to Cabinet in December 2016. 

The redeveloped model of care for Sexual Health

The new model of care for Sexual Health services sees a refocusing of the service 
on those who have a specialist sexual health need and those who are vulnerable to 
poor sexual health outcomes. The new model of care includes several key 
interventions:

- Triage: All clients are assessed and sign-posted to the most appropriate 
service to meet their need: specialist sexual health services; community 
pharmacy; or GP Practice. This also means that patients with an urgent need 
are offered a same day appointment with the service. Patients sign-posted to 
General Practice will generally have a low level contraceptive need, which is 
covered under standard GP services. 

Page 92



- Online/postal testing: For non-symptomatic patients tests can now be ordered 
online. This means that the client does not have to physically attend the 
service. Positive results are followed up by the service. 

- Increased contraception provision in Primary Care: Work has been completed 
with GP Practices to improve provision of long acting reversible contraception 
(LARC) across Gloucestershire. Provision has been made in budgets to meet 
an expected increase in General Practice delivery of LARC and community 
Pharmacy distribution of EHC (to under 25 year olds).

- Education and training in Primary care: A programme to support Sexual 
Health education and training of Primary Care staff has commenced in 
partnership with the CCG, the Specialist Sexual Health Service, and 
University of West of England.

The refocusing of the specialist service is being delivered while also supporting 
Primary Care to address an increase in routine non-vulnerable patients. The 
increase in contacts for General Practice is expected to be modest for most practices 
(less than two per week), but where higher activity is expected, extra support is 
being provided through increased provision of Primary Care Sexual Health Clinics 
(commissioned by GCC). 

The redeveloped service has been implemented through a staged approach 
beginning in June 2017. From October 2017 non-vulnerable patients with low level 
needs (such as routine contraception) are beginning sign-posted to more appropriate 
care settings such as community pharmacy and General Practice, depending on 
their need. 

Monitoring the impact of the service redevelopment

A comprehensive approach to evaluation is being taken as part of the 
redevelopment. This will include monthly monitoring of service activity by specialist 
services and in services delivered by partners in General Practice and Community 
Pharmacy. The impact on indicators including teenage pregnancy, unplanned 
pregnancy, and sexually transmitted infections will also be monitored through routine 
data sources to understand potential positive and negative impacts from service 
changes. This will enable changes to be made in consultation with partners to 
respond in an agile manner. 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Care Scrutiny Committee – 
Report from Commissioning Director: Adults and DASS

_________________________________________________

HCOSC article - National Social Work Awards 

We are very pleased to announce that two members of staff from Adult Social Care 
have been shortlisted for the National Social Work awards.  There are 81 social 
workers and social work teams from across England that have been selected as 
finalists in 16 different categories, celebrating the achievements of practitioners in 
both children’s and adult services. The winners from each category will compete 
against each other to be named the ‘Overall Social Worker of the Year 2017’.

Helen Simpson (Cheltenham locality): Newly Qualified Adult Social Worker of the 
Year 2017

Michelle Bradford (Stroud locality): Adult Social worker of the year 2017 

The awards will be presented on November 24th.

 
Payment Cards for Direct Payments

From the beginning of November, Gloucestershire County Council will have a new 
way of delivering direct payments for our adult social care Service Users.  
Instead of Service Users having to open their own separate  bank account for their 
direct payment the Direct Payment team will do this for them, using an arrangement 
that is called a  ‘payment card’ - so setting up a new direct payment will become 
much quicker and simpler.  The account works just like any other debit card account. 
The account comes with a card which is similar to a debit card to look at. This means 
that Service Users with be able to do the following:

 to make payments over the telephone and Internet.
 to make bank transfer payments and set up standing orders.
 to make payments in person by card using chip and PIN.
 to set up Direct Debits to come out of the account

The account is provided by a company called Prepaid Financial Services.

The Direct Payment team will obtain a payment card for each new direct payment 
account and we will hand deliver this to each Service User to activate the account 
and make sure they understand how to use it. We are starting with setting up NEW 
direct payments this way and we will gradually work with people who have existing 
direct payments to move them over to the new accounts in the coming months.

Page 95

Agenda Item 11



Disabilities Framework Contracts

The Disability Framework contracts have been in place since November 2015 and 
the Contract Frameworks will run until their conclusion in November 2019. This has 
been a joint initiative between the CCG and GCC.

We currently have 6 different Contract Frameworks, each delivering a different 
model of disability support that is community based i.e. not residential care.

Commissioners across the County Council and Clinical Commissioning Group can 
use the frameworks to buy individual packages of support for people with learning 
disabilities, mental health issues and physical disabilities, allowing us to respond 
flexibly to meet the needs of all people with a disability and maximising community 
involvement.  Some of the frameworks also apply to children and young people with 
disabilities.

These enhanced disability contracts demand a focus on enablement, assisting 
people with disabilities to gain the skills and encourage independence wherever 
possible.  Support should be delivered by high quality and well trained staff, 
supporting people in a personalised way with outcomes focused on expanding 
informal networks of community support and helping create practical links with the 
community.

The frameworks are “opened” at regular intervals to allow new entrants to join in 
order to increase choice and opportunities within the market and maintain a 
competitive environment.  There is a stringent and robust accreditation process in 
place to ensure the quality of new providers.  There is no limit to the number of 
providers that can join the framework as long as they meet all Tender requirements.

The tenders have just closed (details on numbers below) and we are in the 
evaluation period. Confirmation of successful providers will be announced in 
December.  The tenders will “open” again in April 2018.

The contracts give a joined up, efficient and clear procurement process, providing 
common pricing structures, single shared terms and conditions and the ability to set 
‘maximum pricing caps’ where necessary.

Frameworks in place are as follows. There has been considerable interest from new 
providers.

Framework No. Providers
on now

No. new
applicants

Support within Shared Accommodation 42 20
Support for People with Complex Needs 30 28
Floating / Visiting Support 34 14
Community Inclusion 15 5
Community Networks 7 0
Live-in Support 14 25

Page 96



Friendship and Assistance for Disabled People – new possibilities

An event will take place at Maisemore Village Hall from 9.30-11.30am on Thursday 
7th December.  The event is geared at anyone interested in how the VCS sector can 
help to prevent demand on disability services.  Attendees will consider the kind of 
support which can potentially help to increase the number of disabled people who 
live their lives within supportive communities without the usual recourse to full formal 
assessment and traditional statutory service provision.  Chaired by the social 
enterprise Active Impact, the session will consider a range of possible initiatives in 
relation to the facilitation of friendship and assistance for disabled adults, disabled 
children and young people and their families. Attendees will include disabled people 
themselves, parent carers, managers and lead professionals from the statutory 
services, charitable funders and representatives of the voluntary and community 
sector. It will be a chance for everyone to consider some exciting options for 
potential developments in the county, and for commissioners and decision makers to 
exchange provisional thoughts and begin to consider the costs and benefits 
associated with this work.  There will be information and basic costings available 
about these and other novel initiatives which do not currently exist in 
Gloucestershire:

To book a place, please email eva.fielding@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Social Impact Bond – Positive Behaviour Support

The CCG and GCC  with support from the social investment charity ‘Social Finance’ 
is  assessing  the feasibility and potential benefits of delivering a Positive Behaviour 
Support (PBS) Service, backed by social investment.  Commissioners from health, 
social care and education are considering whether residential school placements for 
children and young people with learning disabilities can be avoided by delivering 
intensive preventative PBS support to young people identified as being at risk of 
ending up in such a placement due to their behavioural issues contributing to the 
breakdown of their school placement.  Whilst residential school placements usually 
provide a stable placement for the remainder of a young persons’ time in education, 
local analysis backs up national research that they usually fail to prepare the young 
people for a successful transition back to the community when they move to adult 
services, resulting in frequent placement breakdown and a high risk of the individual 
being placed in an inpatient unit.  An effective prevention programme also has the 
potential to deliver significant financial benefits as residential school placements are 
the most expensive way of supporting disabled children and young people with 
complex needs (on average the cost is £200,000 per year) and school leavers go on 
to require the highest cost packages of support in adult social care.  This is an 
innovative use of social investment and grant funding has been received from the 
Life Chances fund to support Gloucestershire in considering the benefits of 
pioneering it locally.

Page 97

mailto:eva.fielding@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Assistive Technology

Inclusion Gloucestershire, an organisation which is user led, has produced a new 
DVD demonstrating how assistive technology can deliver dramatic benefits to people 
with a disability. The film applies to all disability groups and shows some innovative 
uses of technology. All of the examples are real people with a disability showing how 
assistive technology helps them live a better life and have access to more 
independence. Some of these uses help people to gain and maintain employment 
and there is an example of someone with a disability working by using assistive 
technology. Other uses for health related matters can be life saving and can prevent 
downstream costs to the health system by preventing unnecessary admissions to 
hospital. If you would like to view the DVD, please contact: 
agy.pasek@gloucestershire.gov.uk. 

Demand Management in Adult Social Care 

The delivery phase of this Programme is now well under way. The culture change 
element has been delivered to most front line social work staff and staff in the 
Council helpdesk. Occupational therapists and commissioning staff will attend 
workshops in the coming months. The 3 tier conversations that are integral to this 
change in culture and the revised Adult Care offer is gaining traction; statistics now 
show a downward trend in referrals to tier 3 (long term care).

As part of the contractual agreement with iMPOWER, four Demand Management 
Champions are being recruited to work within the Adult Single Programme. The 
recruitment exercise is expected to be complete by the end of November 2017. 
These recruits will be seconded to iMPOWER to undergo training and development. 
On a day to day basis they will work alongside Council and iMPOWER colleagues on 
the 45 projects that form the Adult Single Programme of change. The expectation is 
that they will bring some immediate capacity to help with Programme delivery but will 
provide longer term sustainability to the Council after the iMPOWER contract is 
complete.

The Your Circle Project is going well and the website switched to its new OCC 
platform on 24 October 2017.  The new platform is integrated with the ContrOCCc 
financial management software that became operational earlier this year in Adult 
Care. The “new Your Circle” has a significantly better and more sophisticated search 
engine. Work will however continue to improve the records held on the website and 
there will be a dedicated resource to ensure that the website is maintained and kept 
up to date. Work is progressing with CCG colleagues to link their website to Your 
Circle in a seamless way to effectively have one Health and Social Care website for 
the County. Similarly phase two of this project will move to providing brokerage 
facilities that will enable care providers to have a presence on the website which will 
in turn enable internal brokerage staff to place care packages quicker and more 
efficiently. This phase is expected to be mobilised by the end of November.

Page 98

mailto:agy.pasek@gloucestershire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Quarter 1 Adult Social Care Performance Report
	6 Quarter 2 Public Health Performance Report
	7 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report
	8 One Gloucestershire STP Lead Report
	9 GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report
	10 Director of Public Health Report
	11 Director of Adult Social Services Report



